
1 
 

 
BRUNSWICK TOWN COUNCIL 

Agenda 
June 1, 2015 

7:00 P.M. 
Council Chambers 

Town Hall 
85 Union Street 

 
Roll Call of Members 
 
Acknowledgement of Meeting Notice 
 
Pledge of Allegiance 
 
Adjustments to Agenda 
 
CONSENT AGENDA 
a) Approval of the Minutes of April 30, 2015 
b) Approval of the Minutes of May 14, 2015 
c) Approval of the Minutes of May 18, 2015 
d) Adoption of policies required as part of the Community Development Block (CDBG) Grant 

Phase II Project Development 
e) Approval of a request from the Brunswick Downtown Association to hold their annual 

Outdoor Arts Festival on August 15, 2015, and to waive the $500 fee  
 
Item below requires public input, so it is suggested that it be removed from the Consent Agenda 
to allow for comments from those requesting Council action. 
 
f) Acceptance of sculpture donated by Brunswick Public Art 
 
Public Comments 
 
Correspondence 
 
Committee Reports 
 
MANAGER’S REPORT: 
a) Recognition of donation of granite bench in memory of Jacquelin A. Toth 
b) Election reminder for June 9th School Budget Validation Referendum 
c) Update regarding NNEPRA action on an auxiliary power unit 
d) CDBG Program Overview 

  



2 
 

NEW BUSINESS 
 
63. The Town Council will consider amending the Council Rules regarding how Council 

action items will be handled at Council meetings, and will determine if any future action 
is needed.  (Chair Brayman) 

DISCUSSION 
 
64. The Town Council will consider appointments to the Town’s Boards and Committees, 

and will take any appropriate action.  (Appointments Committee) 
ACTION 

 
Executive Session:  Acquisition of Property [1 M.R.S.A. §405(6)(C 
 

INDIVIDUALS NEEDING AUXILIARY AIDS FOR EFFECTIVE 
COMMUNICATION SHOULD CONTACT  

THE TOWN MANAGER’S OFFICE AT 725-6659 (TDD 725-5521) 
 
  



3 
 

Brunswick Town Council 
Agenda  

June 1, 2015 
Council Notes and Suggested Motions 

 
CONSENT AGENDA 
a) Approval of the Minutes of April 30, 2015:  A copy of the minutes is included in your 

packet. 
b) Approval of the Minutes of May 14, 2015:  A copy of the minutes is included in your packet. 
c) Approval of the Minutes of May 18, 2015:  A copy of the minutes is included in your packet. 
d) Adoption of policies required as part of the Community Development Block (CDBG) Grant 

Phase II Project Development:  The Maine Department of Economic and Community 
Development (DECD) has four components in its CDBG application and award process: (a) 
the Letter of Intent, (b) the Public Hearing and Application; (c) the Phase II Project 
Development; and, (d) the contract award. As part of the Phase II Project Development 
process, the Town must provide assurances that it has adopted certain policies required by 
DECD.  While DECD allows communities to use copies of documents they have on file, it 
requests that the Town update its policies every three to five years.  Our documents must be 
updated since they were last adopted in October 2010.  Copies of a memo from Linda Smith 
and the standard policies, with customized language for the Town of Brunswick, are included 
in your packet. 

e) Approval of a request from the Brunswick Downtown Association to hold their annual 
Outdoor Arts Festival on August 15, 2015, and to waiving the $500 fee:  This item is to 
consider approval of the request from the Brunswick Downtown Association to hold their 
annual Outdoor Arts Festival. The event requires Council approval under Chapter 10, Section 
26(b)(14) of the Municipal Code.  This ordinance also allows the Council to waive the $500 
fee (except for the $25 application fee), which the BDA is asking the Council to do.  The fee 
has been waived in the past.  If you do not wish to waive the fee, the Council will want to 
pull this item off the Consent Agenda and vote on it separately.  A copy of their letter is 
included in your packet.   

 
Item below requires public input, so it is suggested that it be removed from the Consent Agenda 
to allow for comments from those requesting Council action. 
 
f) Acceptance of sculpture donated by Brunswick Public Art:  This item is for the Council to 

support a resolution accepting this donation.  The sculpture, located near the Visitor’s Center, 
will be installed between June 17th and June 19th.  The unveiling celebration will be on 
Monday, June 29, 2015.  Copies of a draft resolution and photo of the sculpture are included 
in your packet. 

 
The Council has the option to remove any item from the Consent Agenda to be considered 
separately. 
 

Suggested motion: 
Motion to approve the Consent Agenda. 
 



4 
 

Suggested motion: 
Motion to approve the Consent Agenda for item CA(f) approving the resolution for the 
donation of a sculpture by Brunswick Public Art. 

 
COUNCIL COMMITTEE UPDATES  
 
Councilors with information on the Committees they are involved with will share information 
with the Council and public. 
 
MANAGER’S REPORT: 
a) Recognition of donation of granite bench in memory of Jacquelin A. Toth: This item is to 

recognize the donation of this bench in memory of Ms. Toth and to thank those who donated 
on her behalf.  A copy of the letter from Mr. Farrell, thanking the family for their generous 
donation, is included in your packet. 

b) Election reminder for June 9th School Budget Validation Referendum:  Absentee ballots are 
available in the Town Clerk’s office until Thursday, June 4th.  Tuesday and Wednesday 
office hours are 8:30 a.m. to 4:30 p.m.  On Thursday, the office will be open until 7:00 p.m.  
On June 9th the polls are open 7:00 a.m. to 8:00 p.m. at the Junior High School, 65 Columbia 
Avenue. 

c) Update regarding NNEPRA action on an auxiliary power unit:  This item is to update the 
Council and the public on what NNEPRA will be doing regarding this installation.  On 
Friday, May 22nd, Patricia Quinn left a voice mail message for the Town Manger indicating 
that NNEPRA was planning to go ahead with the installation of the Auxiliary Power Unit at 
Brunswick West.  We understand the issue was also discussed at a recent NNEPRA Board 
meeting.  The Town Manager hopes to have additional information for the Council at 
Monday’s meeting. 

d) CDBG Program overview:  This item is to provide an overview of this program.   At the 
April 16, 2015 Council meeting, several Councilors asked for a brief overview of the 
Community Development Block Grant (CDBG) programs. Linda Smith has prepared a 
summary chart on the various programs, which are articulated in detail in the Department of 
Economic and Community Development’s Office of Community Development’s 2015 
Program Statement.  Copies of the memo from Ms. Smith, along with supporting materials, 
are included in your packet. 

NEW BUSINESS 
 
63. This item is for the Council to discuss amending the Council Rules regarding how 

Council action items will be handled at Council meetings.  Per the rules, the Council 
cannot make changes at this time, but if you wish, the changes can be made at the next 
meeting. A copy of the drafted changes is included in your packet. 

 
Suggested Motion:  No motion, with possible action at the next meeting. 

 
64. At this time the Appointments Committee will make nominations to fill vacancies on 

Town Boards and Committees.  Copies of the Committee’s report and the applications 
are included in your packet. 

 



5 
 

Suggested Motion: 
Nominations will be made, with no seconds required, and the Council will then vote on 
the nominations. 

 
Executive Session:  Acquisition of Property [1 M.R.S.A. §405(6)(C)]  
 

Suggested Motion: 
Motion to go into Executive Session to discuss Acquisition of Property per 1 M.R.S.A. 
§405(6)(C). 

 
No action will be taken after coming out of executive session. 
 

Suggested Motion: 
 Motion to adjourn the meeting. 
 



 
 

CONSENT AGENDA - A 
BACK UP MATERIALS 
 



Draft 
BRUNSWICK TOWN COUNCIL 

Special Meeting Minutes 
and Budget Workshop 

April 30, 2015 
7:00 P.M. 

Council Chambers 
Town Hall 

85 Union Street 
 
Councilors Present: W. David Watson, Stephen S. Walker, Suzan Wilson, John M. Perreault, 

Daniel E. Harris,  Jane F. Millett, Sarah E. Brayman, Katherine E. Wilson, 
and John Richardson, Jr. 

 
Councilors Absent: None 
 
Town Staff Present: John S. Eldridge, III, Town Manager; Fran Smith, Town Clerk/Assistant to 

the Town Manager; Julie Henze, Finance Director; Cathy Donovan, 
Assessor; Anna Breinich, Director of Planning and Development; Tom 
Farrell, Director of Parks and Recreation; Ken Brillant, Fire Chief; Don 
Koslosky, Deputy Fire Chief; Jeff Emerson, Deputy Fire Chief; Linda 
Smith, Business Development Manager; and TV video crew 

 
Chair Brayman called the meeting to order, asked the Clerk for roll call, acknowledged that the 
meeting was properly noticed, and led the Pledge of Allegiance. 
 
Adjustments to Agenda:  None 
 
NEW BUSINESS 
 
47. The Town Council will consider authorizing the Town to participate in the pre-

application process for TIGER grants for the completion of the Androscoggin River 
Bike and Pedestrian Path and the creation of a parking facility near Town Hall, and 
will take any appropriate action.  (Manager)  

 
Manager Eldridge introduced this item. 
 
Anna Breinich, Director of Planning and Development, provided additional information on this 
item. 
 
Councilor Perreault, Councilor Millett, and Councilor Harris asked questions, to which Ms. 
Breinich responded. 
 
Manager Eldridge also responded to Councilor Millett’s question. 
 
Councilor Perreault moved, Councilor Watson seconded. to authorize the Town to 
participate in the pre-application process for TIGER grants relative to the completion of 
the Androscoggin River Bike and Pedestrian Path (in the amount of $2.2 million) and 
creating a parking facility near Town Hall to include the Portland METRO (in the amount 
of $5.5 million.)  The motion carried with nine (9) yeas. 



Town Council Minutes 
April 30, 2015 
Page 2 
 

2 
 

 
(A copy of Ms. Breinich’s memo will be attached to the official minutes.) 

 
Councilor Watson moved, Councilor K. Wilson seconded, to adjourn the meeting.  The 
motion carried with nine (9) yeas. 
 
The meeting adjourned at 7:26 p.m. 
 
PLEASE NOTE:  THESE MINUTES ARE ACTION MINUTES.  THE ENTIRE 
MEETING CAN BE VIEWED AT WWW.BRUNSWICKME.ORG.  
 
 
Frances M. Smith 
Town Clerk 
May 14, 2015 
 

June 1, 2015 
Date of Approval 

 

___________________________ 
Council Chair 



 
 

CONSENT AGENDA - B 
BACK UP MATERIALS 
 



Draft 
BRUNSWICK TOWN COUNCIL 

Minutes – Special Meeting 
Budget Hearing 

May 14, 2015 
7:00 P.M. 

Council Chambers 
Town Hall 

85 Union Street 
 
Councilors Present: W. David Watson, Stephen S. Walker, Suzan Wilson, John M. Perreault, 

Jane F. Millett, Sarah E. Brayman, Katherine E. Wilson, and John 
Richardson Jr. 

 
Councilors Absent: Councilor Daniel E. Harris 
 
Town Staff Present: John S. Eldridge, III, Town Manager; Fran Smith, Town Clerk/Assistant 

to the Town Manager; Paul Perzanoski, Superintendent of Schools; Greg 
Bartlett, Assistant Superintendent of Schools; James Oikle, School 
Business Manager; Anna Breinich, Director of Planning and 
Development; Ken Brillant, Fire Chief; Richard Rizzo, Police Chief; John 
Foster, Public Works Director; Tom Farrell, Director of Parks and 
Recreation; Julie Henze, Finance Director; Linda Smith, Business 
Development Manager; Don Koslosky, Deputy Fire Chief; Jeff Emerson, 
Deputy Fire Chief; Linda Smith, Business Development Manager; Bryan 
Cobb, IT/Cable TV Manager; Jessica Factor, Human Resources Manager; 
Terry Goan, Police Officer; and TV video crew 

 
Chair Brayman called the meeting to order, asked the Clerk for roll call, acknowledged that the 
meeting was properly noticed, and led the Pledge of Allegiance. 
 
Adjustments to the Agenda:   None 
 
PUBLIC HEARINGS 
 
52. The Town Council will hear public comments regarding the proposed 2015-2016 

Municipal Budget, which includes the school budget portion of the overall 
municipal budget, and Capital Improvement Plan 2016-2020, and will take any 
appropriate action.  (Manager) 

 
Manager Eldridge introduced this item and provided an overview of the budget. 
 
Councilor Millett spoke regarding the mill rate. 
 
Chair Brayman opened the public hearing. 
 



Town Council Minutes 
May 14, 2015 
Page 2 
 
The following people spoke during the public hearing: 
Meg Austin, 8 Parsons Farm Road 
Soxna Dice, 3 Breckan Road 
Richard Ellis, Adams Road, and School Board member 
Jon Carr, 246 Woodside Road 
Jim Trusiani, 6 Pleasant Street 
Richard Fisco, 2 Lincoln Street 
Renata Ledwick, 4 High Street 
Sara Branch, 2 High Street 
John Kosinski, 17 Thompson Street 
Marie Barbieri, 17 Sumac Drive 
Gretchen Feiss, 46 Union Street 
Erin Mangalam, 4 Chestnut Road 
Dana Bateman, 13 Franklin Street 
Heather Perkinson, 6 Page Street 
 
Councilor Richardson spoke about the loss of state funding. 
 
Chair Brayman closed the public hearing. 
 
Council Questions/Discussion 
 
Councilor Perreault, Councilor Walker, and Councilor Millett asked questions, to which 
Superintendent Perzanoski responded.  
 
Councilor Millett, Councilor Perreault, Councilor Richardson and Chair Brayman spoke 
regarding the proposed budget. 
 
Councilor Watson moved, Councilor Perreault seconded, to adjourn the meeting.  The 
motion carried with eight (8) yeas. 
 
The meeting adjourned at 8:43p.m. 
 
PLEASE NOTE:  THESE MINUTES ARE ACTION MINUTES.  THE ENTIRE 
MEETING CAN BE VIEWED AT WWW.BRUNSWICKME.ORG.  
 
 
Frances M. Smith 
Town Clerk 
May 17, 2015 
 

June 1, 2015 
Date of Approval 

 



Town Council Minutes 
May 14, 2015 
Page 3 
 

___________________________ 
Council Chair 



 
 

 
CONSENT AGENDA - C 
BACK UP MATERIALS 



Draft 
BRUNSWICK TOWN COUNCIL 

Minutes 
May 18, 2015 

7:00 P.M. 
Council Chambers 

Town Hall 
85 Union Street 

 
Councilors Present: W. David Watson, Stephen S. Walker, Suzan Wilson, John M. Perreault, 

Jane F. Millett, Sarah E. Brayman, and Katherine E. Wilson 
 
Councilors Absent: Councilor Daniel E. Harris and John Richardson Jr. 
 
Town Staff Present: John S. Eldridge, III, Town Manager; Fran Smith, Town Clerk/Assistant to 

the Town Manager; John Foster, Public Works Director; Ken Brillant, Fire 
Chief, Richard Rizzo, Police Chief; John Foster, Public Works Director; 
Julie Henze, Finance Director; Don Koslosky, Deputy Fire Chief; Terry 
Goan, Police Officer; and TV video crew 

 
Chair Brayman called the meeting to order, asked the Clerk for roll call, and acknowledged that the 
meeting was properly noticed. 
 
Executive Session:  Union Negotiations [1 M.R.S.A. §405(6)(D)] 
 
Councilor Perreault moved, Councilor Millett seconded, to go into executive session to discuss 
Union Negotiations per 1 M.R.S.A. §405(6)(D). The motion carried with seven (7) yeas. 
 
MEETING RESUMES 
 
Chair Brayman resumed the meeting and led the Pledge of Allegiance. 
 
CONSENT AGENDA   (This item was discussed at 7:01 p.m.) 
(a) Approval of the minutes of May 4, 2015 
(b) Approval of a Quitclaim Deed for the mobile home on land depicted as Map 051 

Lot 001 Sub 000 Typ 025 
 
Councilor Perreault moved, Councilor Millett seconded, to approve the Consent 
Agenda.  The motion carried with seven (7) yeas. 
 
Public Comments (This item was discussed at 7:02 p.m.) 
 
Sara Singer, 17 Thompson Street, spoke regarding the school budget and the reductions in 
state funding.   
 
Correspondence (This item was discussed at 7:04 p.m.)  None 
 
Committee Report (This item was discussed at 7:05 p.m.) 
 



 
Town Council Minutes 
May 18, 2015 
Page 2 
 

 

A report was given regarding the Teen Center fundraiser. 
 
MANAGER’S REPORT  (This item was discussed at 7:08 p.m.) 
(a) Financial Update 

 
Manager Eldridge spoke regarding this item. 

 
PUBLIC HEARING 

 
53. The Town Council will hear comments regarding ordinance amendments to 

Chapter 14 “Streets, Sidewalks, and Other Public Places” of the Brunswick 
Municipal Code relative to increasing permit fees for Street Openings, Street 
Entrances, and Street Obstruction, and will take any appropriate action. 
(Manager) (This item was discussed at 7:09 p.m.) 

 
Manager Eldridge introduced this item and responded to a question from Councilor Millett.   
 

John Foster, Public Works Director, also responded to Councilor Millett’s question. 
 

Chair Brayman opened the public hearing. 
 

Councilor Perreault abstained, since the proposed changes may have a direct financial effect on his 
business. 
 
Chair Brayman moved, Councilor Watson seconded, to adopt ordinance amendments to 
Chapter 14 “Streets, Sidewalks, and Other Public Places” of the Brunswick Municipal Code 
relative to increasing permit fees for Street Openings, Street Entrances, and Street 
Obstruction.  The motion carried with five (5) yeas.  Councilor Millett was opposed and 
Councilor Perreault abstained. 
 
(A copy of the adopted ordinance will be attached to the official minutes.) 
 
54. The Town Council will hear comments regarding ordinance amendments to 

Chapter 13 “Solid Waste” of the Brunswick Municipal Code to allow a discounted 
disposal fee in return for a reduction in the contract charge for curbside residential 
rubbish collection for Town contracted residential curbside collection, and will take 
any appropriate action. (Manager) (This item was discussed at 7:16 p.m.) 

 
Chair Brayman opened the public hearing. 
 
Manager Eldridge introduced this item and responded to questions from Councilor Perreault and 
Councilor S. Wilson. 
 
Councilor Millett spoke regarding this item. 
 
Chair Brayman closed the public hearing. 
 



 
Town Council Minutes 
May 18, 2015 
Page 3 
 

 

Councilor Walker moved, Councilor Watson seconded, to adopt ordinance amendments to 
Chapter 13 “Solid Waste” of the Brunswick Municipal Code to allow a discounted disposal 
fee in return for a reduction in the contract charge for curbside residential rubbish 
collection for Town contracted residential curbside collection.  The motion carried with 
seven (7) yeas.  
 
(A copy of the adopted ordinance will be attached to the official minutes.) 
 
NEW BUSINESS 

 
55. The Town Council will consider recommendations from the Nathaniel Davis 

Fund Committee, and will take any appropriate action. (Manager)  (This 
item was discussed at 7:27 p.m.) 

 
Sande Updedgraph, Chair of the Committee, gave the recommendations. 
 
Councilor Perreault moved, Councilor Walker seconded, to accept the 
recommendations for the Davis Fund’s 2014-2015 allocations as recommended by the 
Committee.  The motion carried with six (6) yeas.  Chair Brayman abstained as she is 
on the board of Brunswick Public Art. 
 

(A copy of the Committee’s minutes, with their recommendations, will be attached to the official 
minutes.) 
 
56. The Town Council will discuss the Municipal Budget and provide some direction 

as to the final budget goal, and no action will be required. (Manager)  (This item 
was discussed at 7:39 p.m.) 

 
Manager Eldridge made a presentation on the budget.  He responded to questions from 
Councilor Millett, Councilor Perreault, and Councilor S. Wilson. 
 
Councilor Perreault spoke and asked questions, to which Manager Eldridge and Mr. Foster 
responded. 
 
Chair Brayman opened the floor to public comments. 
 
John Carr, 246 Woodside Road, made comments and asked questions. 
 
Richard Fisco, 2 Lincoln Street, spoke and provided suggestions. 
 
Chair Brayman closed the floor to public comment and opened up discussion for the Council. 
 
The following Councilors spoke regarding the proposed budget: 
Chair Brayman, Councilor Walker, Councilor Perreault, Councilor Millett, Councilor K. 
Wilson, Councilor S. Wilson, and Councilor Watson.  
 
Councilor Watson moved, Councilor Perreault seconded, to adjourn the meeting.  The 
motion carried with six (6) yeas.  Councilor Millett left prior to adjournment. 



 
Town Council Minutes 
May 18, 2015 
Page 4 
 

 

 
The meeting adjourned at 9:39 p.m. 
 
PLEASE NOTE:  THESE MINUTES ARE ACTION MINUTES.  THE ENTIRE MEETING 
CAN BE VIEWED AT WWW.BRUNSWICKME.ORG.  
 
 
 
Frances M. Smith 
Town Clerk 
May 20, 2015 
 

June 2, 2015 
Date of Approval 

 

___________________________ 
Council Chair 



 
 

 
CONSENT AGENDA - D 
BACK UP MATERIALS 



 

Town of Brunswick, Maine 
INCORPORATED 1739 

ECONOMIC AND COMMUNITY 

DEVELOPMENT 

85 UNION STREET 

BRUNSWICK, MAINE 04011-2418 

 
 

 

TELEPHONE      207-721-0292 

FAX                      207-725-6663 

 

 

www.brunswickme.org 

 

MEMORANDUM 

TO:   Town Council 

FROM: Linda Smith, Business Development Manager 

SUBJECT: Required Documents for Community Development Block Grant Program 

Applications 

DATE: May 22, 2015 

 

The Maine Department of Economic and Community Development (DECD) has four 

components in its Community development Block Grant (CDBG) application and award process: 

(a) the Letter of Intent, (b) the Public Hearing and Application; (c) the Phase II Project 

Development; and, (d) the contract award. As part of the Phase II Project Development process, 

the Town must provide assurances that it has adopted certain policies required by DECD. While 

DECD allows communities to use copies of documents they have on file, it requests that the 

Town update its policies every three to five years. Our documents must be updated since they 

were last adopted in October 2010. 

The following policies need to be updated:  

 Code of Standards of Conduct; 

 Fair Housing Resolution and Fair Housing Assessment; 

 Section 504/ADA Self Evaluation and Transition Plan and Certification; 

 Equal Opportunity Policy Statement; and, 

 Anti-Displacement & Relocation Assistance Plan.  

Wherever necessary, the policies contain the Town of Brunswick’s specific information. The 

Section 504/ADA Self Evaluation and Transition Plan and the Fair Housing Assessment were 

completed by Jessica Factor, Human Resources Manager. Since we have occupied four new 

facilities (Police Department, Town Hall, Recreation Department, and People Plus) since the 

2010 adoption process, this update required coordination with Buddy Rogers, Facilities 

Foreman, to visit the actual facilities and document compliance with the Section 504/ADA and 

Fair Housing requirements. As the chart on the final page of the Section 504 Self Evaluation 

and Transition Plan indicates, our facilities are at an almost 100% level of compliance.    

Jessica Factor and I are available to answer any questions you may have about these policies. 

 

Attachments/ 

Cc: John Eldridge, Town Manager 

      Jessica Factor, Human Resources Manager   



STANDARDS OF CONDUCT 
STATE OF MAINE COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT BLOCK GRANT  
 

INTRODUCTION  
Elected officials, appointed officials, employees of Community Development Block Grant (CDBG) 
recipients, and contractors are those responsible for administering Maine’s CDBG Program and are 
also responsible for its integrity. Following sound business practices, prescribed standards of conduct 
and Department of Housing and Urban Development (HUD) requirements will help protect these 
grant funds, but also those who administer the program. 
 

 
PURPOSE  
This notice provides information on specific activities you must avoid and identifies essential HUD 
requirements that must be met. The requirements will help to prevent fraud and program abuse by 
alerting essential officials to appropriate standards of conduct. 
 

 
AUTHORITIES  
Pertinent laws and requirements that you should have copies of are: 
 

 Housing and Community Development Act of 1974 as amended in 1992.  
 Community Development Block Grant Regulations (24 CFR Part 570).  
 

 
PROGRAM REQUIREMENTS & PROHIBITED ACTIVITIES  
The following sections reviewed prohibited activities and administrative requirements that must be 
followed by all CDBG communities. 
 

1. Prohibition against conflicts of interest 
 

CDBG regulations (25 CFR, Part 570.489 (h)) prohibit conflicts of interest. For all CDBG activities: no 
employee, agent, consultant, officer, or elected official or appointed official of the state, or of a unit of 
general local government, or of any designated public agencies, or subrecipients may: 
 

a) Obtain personal or financial interest or benefits including money, favors, gratuities, 
entertainment or anything of value that might be interpreted as conflict of interest. 

 

b) Obtain a direct or indirect interest in any contract, subcontract or agreement for any CDBG 
activity. This prohibition extends to contract in which your spouse, minor child, dependent or 
business associate may have personal or financial interest. This prohibition extends for a 
period of one year after you leave your position with a CDBG activity or program. 

 

c)    HUD may grant an exception to this conflict of interest provision if it                                                                                                                     
determines that such exception will enhance the effectiveness of the CDBG project. 
Requests for such exceptions must be made in writing to this office.  

 

2.  Procurement and Contracting Requirements 
 
Provisions of 24 CFR Part 85 and Part 36, Administrative Requirements apply to the CDBG Program 
grantees. These provisions prohibit the following practices in your procurement and contract 

administration. 
a) Circumventing competitive bidding requirements by: 

 

1) failing to advertise for sealed bids or soliciting proposals and engaging in 
noncompetitive negotiation; 



 

2) failing to use established evaluation criteria in negotiations;  
 

3) splitting bids by breaking down contracts into small parts so that purchase order 
procedures can be used except to meet Minority/Women Business Enterprise goals; 

 

4) favoring or providing a competitive advantage to any one firm or individual; 
identifying the names of those invited to bid; and preparing fictitious bids to simulate 
competition. 

 

b) Failing to adhere to contract award requirements by: 
 

1) allowing excessive price charges; 
 

2) awarding contract to other than low bidder without adequate justification; and 
 

3) accepting a bid that does not contain a price for all items or services included in the 
bid invitation. 

 

c) Failing to verify contractual and programmatic compliance by contractors by: 
 

1) authorizing payment for work not completed; 
 

2) falsifying inspection reports; 
 

3) altering contractor invoices; and 
 

4) misusing modification or change orders. 
 
 

3. Financial Management and Recording Systems 
 

You must comply with the following requirements of 24 CFR part 85.20 and 85.42 and CDBG 
regulations. 
 

a) Establish internal controls to safeguard cash, inventory and equipment. 
 

b) Establish a special ledger account for all CDBG monies. 
 

c) Maintain financial records including: 

 

1) A register of cash receipts and disbursements; 
2)  record of all non-cash transactions; 

 

3) General ledger to show the status of each CDBG account; 
 

4) A fixed account ledger, and 
 

5) A record of drawdowns, funds received and balance of funds. 
 

d) Ensure you maintain financial records and maintain for three years from final closeout. 
 

e) Use income generated from grant activities for other eligible activities. 
 

f) Use program income before drawing additional grant funds to pay for allowable program 
expenses. 

 

g) Not request or draw down more funds then needed. 
 

 
 
 



4. Cost Allowance 
You must comply with OMB Circular A-87, Cost Principles for State and Local Governments. You 
may not spend CDBG funds on ineligible activities including: 
 

a) Expenses required to carry out the regular responsibilities of the general local government. 
 

b) Partisan political activities (e.g. contributions towards political campaigns, voter registration or 
candidate forums). 

 

 
5. Program Monitoring 
 

Regulation CFR Part 85.40 states you must monitor the performance of grant supported activities to 
assure compliance with federal requirements and that performance goals are being achieved. It is 
suggested you: 
 

a) Keep records for your on-site visits to sub grantees and contractors. 
 

b) Place special emphasis on your monitoring of the highest risk sub recipients and contractors. 
 
 
 

 
      AUTHORIZED SIGNATURES 
 

  

Name: 
 

Date: 

  

Fran Smith, Town Clerk 
Adopted by the Brunswick Town 
Council on – 
 

Date: 

          
 
 

Municipal Seal 

 



FAIR HOUSING RESOLUTION 
STATE OF MAINE COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT BLOCK GRANT PROGRAM 
 

LET IT BE KNOWN TO ALL PERSONS of the Town of Brunswick that discrimination in the sale, 
rental, leasing, financing of housing or land to be used for construction of housing, or in the provision 
of brokerage services because of race, color, religion, sex, handicap, familial status or national origin 
is prohibited by Title VIII of the 1968 Civil Rights Act (Federal Fair Housing Law). It is the policy of the 
Town of Brunswick to implement programs to ensure equal opportunity in housing for all persons 
regardless of race, color, religion, sex, handicap, familial status or national origin. Therefore, the 
Town does hereby pass the following Resolution: 
 

BE IT RESOLVED that within available resources the Town will assist all persons who feel they have 
been discriminated against because of race, color, religion, sex, handicap, familial status or national 
origin to seek equity under federal and state laws by filing a complaint with the Maine Human Rights 
Commission or the U.S. Department of Housing and Urban Development, Boston Regional Office 
Compliance Division. 
 

BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED that the Town shall publicize this Resolution and through this publicity 
shall cause owners of real estate, developers and builders to become aware of their respective 
responsibilities and rights under the Federal Fair Housing Law and any applicable state and local 
laws or ordinances. 
 

SAID PROGRAM will at a minimum include but not be limited to: (1) the printing and publicizing of 
this policy and other applicable fair housing information through local media and community contacts; 
(2) distribution of posters, flyers and any other means which will bring to the attention of those 
affected, the knowledge of their respective responsibilities and rights concerning equal opportunity in 
housing.  
 
        AUTHORIZED SIGNATURES 
 

  

Name: 
 

Date: 

  

Fran Smith, Town Clerk 
Adopted by the Brunswick Town 
Council on – 
 

Date: 

 
 
 
         Municipal Seal 

 



 
         

FAIR HOUSING SELF ASSESSMENT 
STATE OF MAINE COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT BLOCK GRANT PROGRAM 
 

COMMUNITY OF: BRUNSWICK      
 

1. To the best of your knowledge has your community been involved in any complaints regarding 
discrimination the sale or rental of housing on the basis of race, color, religion, sex, national origin, 
familial status or handicap? 
 

  Yes    No   
 

2. If yes, give a brief description of the nature of any complaints and resolutions. 
 

  Yes  No    N/A        
        
3. Has your community adopted a Fair Housing Program to help local citizens be aware of their 
rights regarding fair housing under federal and state law, and in filing a complaint if discrimination is 
suspected? 
 

   Yes  No 
 

4. What do you perceive as the most potentially serious problem areas regarding discrimination 
in fair housing in your community? 
 

Problem Area Very 
Serious 

Serious Moderate Not a Problem 

Color    X 

Familial Status    X 

Handicap    X 

National Origin    X 

Race    X 

Religion    X 

Sex    X 
 

 

5.  Does your community contain any subsidized housing units? 
 

 Yes  No 
 
 

6. As best as can be determined, do relevant public policies/practices regarding zoning and 
building codes have an adverse impact on the achievement of fair housing choice?   

Yes   No 
 

7. Are you aware of any practices in the local real estate community as it relates to buying, selling 
and house rentals that may adversely affect the achievement of fair housing choice in your 
community? 
  Yes   No 



8. Do your community records contain data on the actual number and percentage of persons 
residing in the community by race, color, religion, sex, national origin, age, handicap and familial 
status, as well as income characteristics by group? 
 
   Yes  No 
 
9. Is information available to you that list major local employers by type and the number of people 
employed within your community by salary and racial group? 
 
   Yes  No 
 
10. Is there public transportation available in your community? 
 
   Yes  No 
 
11. Do your community records contain data on the total number of housing units in the community 
by type, and the number of vacant units? 
 
   Yes  No 
 
12. Does your community contain any housing for the handicapped such as group homes, 
independent living complexes, etc.? 
 
   Yes  No 
 
13. Has your community participated in the CDBG program prior to 1993? 
 
   Yes  No 
 
14. Has your community been involved with any other state or federal programs that required the 
reporting of specific fair housing information? 
   

Yes        No 
 
 
 
 
_____________________________________       
Signature of Authorized Municipal Official  Date           
 
John Eldridge, Town Manager                 



SECTION 504 SELF EVALUATION AND TRANSITION PLAN 
STATE OF MAINE COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT BLOCK GRANT PROGRAM 
 

TOWN OF BRUNSWICK  
 
The following individual is responsible for inquiries regarding this Section 504 Self-Evaluation 
and Transition Plan: 
 
         _____Jessica Factor____________________________________________________ 
         (name) 
 
         _____Human Resources Manager_________________________________________ 
         (title) 
 
         _____85 Union Street, Brunswick, Maine 04011______________________________ 
         (address) 
 
         _207-725-6653___________207-725-6663__________jfactor@brunswickme.org_____ 
         (telephone)   (fax)    (e-mail) 
 
 
 
 
       AUTHORIZED SIGNATURES 
 

  

Name: 
 

Date: 

  

Fran Smith, Town Clerk 
Adopted by the Brunswick Town 
Council on - 
 

Date:  

 
 



1. EMPLOYMENT                  
 
1. Are job announcements put into newspapers that have general circulation? 
 
                             _X_ Yes   ___ No      
                                                                                                         
 If No, describe how individuals are made aware of employment opportunities:  
 
 ________________________________________________________________ 
 
 ________________________________________________________________ 
 
2. Do job announcements state that the municipality is an Equal Opportunity  

Employer? 
 
                             _X__ Yes   ___ No 
 

If No, explain why the "Equal Opportunity Employer" statement is not contained within job 
announcements: 

 
 ________________________________________________________________ 
            
           ________________________________________________________________ 
       
3. Has the municipality adopted a Equal Employment Opportunity Policy Statement? 
 
                             _X_ Yes   ___ No 
 
4. Do job applications inquire as to whether an applicant is a disabled person or as to the nature 

or severity of a disability? 
 
                             ___ Yes   _X__ No 
  

If Yes, explain:             
 

             
 
 
5. Describe the accommodations that can be made for the known physical and mental limitations 

of otherwise qualified disabled persons who are currently employed or applying for 
employment: 

 
The Town would refer to the individual's Physician and the current job description to 
determine accommodations.________________________________________________ 

 
 
 
 
 



 
2. PROGRAM ACCESSIBILITY           
 
1. Are any of the following services or benefits provided to residents directly by the municipality? 
 

                             _X_ Yes   ___ No     ** NOTE: All other services are provided within the Town to  
                        all individuals. 
 
 (Please mark an "X" for all services provided by the municipality) 
 
 ____  Transportation Services        ____  Counseling Services 
 
 ____  Health Services                    ____  Employment Services 
  
 ____  Public Housing                     ____  Food Services 
 

  __X__  General                              _X__  Social, Recreational, or  Athletic                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                   
           Services 
  

 (a)  For those services that are provided, describe accommodations that can be taken to make 
them accessible and usable for persons with disabilities (e.g. provision of auxiliary aids, 
relocating programs to accessible facilities, use of alternative materials, home visits, etc.): 

 

 Home visits; auxiliary aids; accessible facilities; use of alternative materials; other 
accommodations as needed.  ______________________________________________ 

 _______________________________________________________________________ 
 

 
2. Are there any limitations on the number of qualified disabled persons who may participate in or 

be admitted to the program?  
 

                             ___ Yes   _X_ No 
 
 If Yes, list the steps to eliminate the limitations: 
 

 ________________________________________________________________ 
 

 ________________________________________________________________ 
 
 

3. Do applications for these services, in any way discriminate against persons with disabilities? 
 
                             ___ Yes   _X_ No 
  
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



 
4. Describe the nature of the qualifications that are needed in order to be eligible for                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                   

each respective program:                   
 
 
 Program                 Qualifications                 
 
1.  General Assistance    Resident or individual(s) seeking residence 

                                                         in Town.  Program is based on income       
    guidelines as established by State.   
 
2. Social, Recreational or Athletic Services  None 
 

 
3.  

 
4.                                                       

 
5.                                                       

 
6.  

 
7.  

 

3. FACILITIES 

   _____________________         
Note:  The definition of "facility" under Section 504 includes all or any portion of buildings, structures, 
equipment, roads, walks, parking lots or other real or personal property or interest in such property, owned, 
operated or leased by the municipality) 
 

1.List below all facilities and the programs or operations for which each facility houses. 
 

   Facility            Programs or Operations Housed          
 

1.  Town Hall      Municipal Departments                                                                       
2.  Fire Station (Central)  Municipal Public Safety: Fire/EMS Services 
 

3.  Fire Station (Emerson)  Municipal Public Safety: Fire/EMS Services 
 

4.  Public Works Department  Municipal Department 
 

5.  Parks & Recreation   Municipal Department  
 

6.  Police Department   Municipal Public Safety: Law Enforcement 
 

7.  People Plus    Multi-Generational Facility 

 
 
 
 
 



 
 
 
Using the Uniform Federal Accessibility Standards (UFAS), each facility must be reviewed for 
compliance: 
 

COMPLIANCE COMPONENT                                                FACILITIES 
 

 #1 #2 #3 #4 #5 #6 #7 

Accessible Route 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 
Outside Paths and Walks 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 
Parking 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 
Curb Ramps 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 
Ramps 1 3 1 3 2 3 1 
Entrances/interior Doors 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 
Elevators 1 2 1 3 3 1 1 
Lifts 3 3 1 3 3 3 3 
Toilet Rooms 1 2 1 1 1 1 1 
Drinking Fountains 1 2 1 1 1 1 1 
Warning Signals 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 
Assembly Areas 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 
Public Telephones 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 
Other Building Elements 
and Specialized Facilities 

3 3 3 3 3 3 3 

 

-  Place a "1" in the respective box if item is in compliance with UFAS    
      -  Place a "2" in the respective box if item is not in compliance with UFAS 

 -  Place a "3" in the respective box if item is not available and is not required 
  

*  #1 through #7 above must correspond to the specific facility with that same number identified on the preceding 
page. 
 

 
2. For those facilities where a "2" was indicated for the specific component, list  below the 
inaccessible feature that limits accessibility to the programs provided in that facility: 
 
 #2 - Central Station is considered to be Historical and is not ADA accessible.  Public 

meetings occur in other accessible buildings as needed.          
 
 #5 - Accessibility ramp is available and can be utilized; additional adjustments are  
 necessary to fully meet standard.       ________________ 
  

 
 
 
 
       



ADA/SECTION 504 CERTIFICATION 
STATE OF MAINE COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT BLOCK GRANT PROGRAM 
 
 
The Town of Brunswick hereby certifies that it has complied with the following requirements pursuant 
to Section 504 of the Rehabilitation Act of 1973 and Title II of the Americans with Disabilities Act and 
 

1. Conducted a Section 504/ADA Transition Plan and Self Evaluation of all municipal facilities; 
 
2. Advises the public, employees and job applicants that it does not discriminate on the basis 
of handicapped status in admission or access to or treatment or employment in its programs 
and activities; and 
 
3. Has designated the following person as the contact to coordinate efforts to comply with 
these requirements. 

 
 
 
Name: ___Jessica Factor___________________   Title: ____Human Resources Manager_____ 
 
 
 

__________________________________        Date:  ______________________________                                                                                                                                                                                                                                          
(Signature of Authorized Municipal Official)                      

 
 John Eldridge, Town Manager 
 
 
 
 
 

Municipal Seal 
         



Equal Employment Opportunity Policy Statement 
STATE OF MAINE COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT BLOCK GRANT PROGRAM 
 
 The Town Council of Brunswick declares its intent that the Town will pursue a policy of non-
discrimination in personnel practices, including: recruiting, hiring, opportunities for transfer and 
promotion, conditions or privileges of employment, as well as compensation and benefits.  Such 
practices or procedures shall not favor or penalize any person because of race, creed, color, sex, 
marital status, national origin, age, physical handicap, where these are not found to be bona fide 
occupational qualifications. 
 
 The Town recognizes its responsibility to enhance the purposes set forth in the Maine Human 
Rights Act as well as Federal statutes which may apply as a result of its Federal grant activities. 
 
 Compliance with EEO requirements may be enhanced through adoption of appropriate 
personnel policies.  Assistance in drafting such policies may be obtained through the Maine Municipal 
Association or your Community Development Office.   
 
        AUTHORIZED SIGNATURES 
 

  

Name: 
 

Date: 

  

Fran Smith, Town Clerk 
Adopted by the Brunswick Town 
Council on – 
 

Date: 

 
 
 
 
         Municipal Seal 

 

 



RESIDENTIAL ANTIDISPLACEMENT & RELOCATION 
ASSISTANCE PLAN 
Town of Brunswick 
(under Section 104(d) of the Housing and Community Development Act of 1974, as amended). 
 

I. PURPOSE: 
This Plan is established following Section 104(d) of the Housing and Community Development Act of 
1974, as amended. Its objective is to insure that persons displaced as a result of CDBG-assisted 
projects are treated fairly, consistently, and equitably so that such persons will not suffer 
disproportionate injuries as a result of a project designed for the benefit of the public as a whole. 
 

II. COMPLIANCE MEASURES: 
The Town of Brunswick will replace all occupiable and vacant Low - Moderate Income dwelling units 
demolished OR converted with funds provided under the Housing and Community Development Act 
of 1974, as amended, in a way as described as follows: 

 
1. The units must be located within the state recipient's jurisdiction and to the extent possible 

shall be located within the same neighborhood as the units replaced. 

 
2. The units must be sufficient in number and size to house no less than the number of 

occupants who could have been housed in the units that are demolished or converted. 

 
3. The units must be provided in standard condition. 

 
4. The replacement units must be made available for occupancy during the period beginning 

one year before an agreement to convert or demolish the units in question is executed and 
ending three years after the commencement of the demolition or rehabilitation related to the 
conversion. 

 
The units must remain Low-Moderate Income dwelling units for at least 10 years from the date of 
initial occupancy. Before the Town of Brunswick enters into an agreement to provide funds that will 
directly result in the demolition of Low-Moderate Income dwelling units or the conversion of Low-
Moderate Income dwelling units, the Town of Brunswick will make public and submit the following 
information in writing to the State: 
 

1) A description of the proposed assisted activity; 
 
2) The location on a map and the number of dwelling units by size that will be demolished or 

converted to a use other than for Low-Moderate Income dwelling units as a direct result of 
the assisted activity; 

 

3) A time schedule for the commencement and completion of the demolition or conversion; 
 

4) The source of funding and a time schedule for the provision of replacement dwelling units; 
 

5) The basis for concluding that each replacement dwelling unit will remain a  
Low-Moderate Income dwelling unit for at least 10 years from the date of                                                                                           
initial occupancy; 

 



6) Information demonstrating that any proposed replacement dwelling units with smaller 
dwelling units is consistent with the housing needs of Low-Moderate Income households in 
the jurisdiction. 

 

Consistent with the goals and objectives of activities assisted under the Housing and Community 
Development Act, the Town of Brunswick will take all possible actions within its power to minimize 
the displacement of persons from their homes. 
 

III. ASSISTANCE TO PERSONS DISPLACED: 
 

The Town of Brunswick shall provide relocation assistance and payments as required under the 
Uniform Relocation Assistance and Real Property Acquisition Policies Act of 1970 or the Housing and 
Community Development Act of 1974, as amended, Section 104(d) for residents displaced as a result 
of CDBG funded activities. All displaced residents who are eligible for other housing programs will be 
helped through that agency’s process. In addition, Town staff shall provide housing counseling and 
referral services to assist those displaced to find alternative housing in the neighborhood. 
 

IV. DEFINITIONS: 
 

Displaced Person: Any person (family, individual, business, nonprofit organization or farm operation) 
that moves from real property, or moves personal property from real property, permanently and 
involuntarily, as a direct result of rehabilitation, demolition or acquisition (privately undertaken or 
public) for HUD-assisted program/project. 
 

V. AGENCY RESPONSIBILITY: 
 

The Town of Brunswick Economic & Community Development Department shall be responsible for 
the implementation of this Plan as well as ensuring compliance with applicable Federal and State law 
and regulations. The Town of Brunswick will identify and designate a Relocation Officer to perform 
functions concerning this Plan. Any questions regarding this Plan or Federal and State laws regarding 
displacement should be addressed to the Town’s Economic & Community Development Department. 
 

VI. CERTIFICATIONS: 
 

 The Town of Brunswick hereby certifies that it will uphold the contents of this Plan and the 
intentions of the compliance measures stated. 
   

AUTHORIZED SIGNATURES 
 

  

Name: 
 

Date: 

  

Fran Smith, Town Clerk 
Adopted by the Brunswick Town 
Council on – 
 

Date: 

          
 

Municipal Seal 



 
 

 
CONSENT AGENDA - E 
BACK UP MATERIALS 





 
 

 
CONSENT AGENDA -F 
BACK UP MATERIALS 
 



Town of Brunswick Resolution 
for the Town of Brunswick to Accept from Brunswick Public Art 

the Sculpture “Haven” by Artist Miles Chapin 
for Display and Contemplation at the Entrance to the Brunswick Station 

Whereas, Brunswick Public Art's mission is to inspire and promote quality public art that 
captures the spirit, values, and visions of our diverse community; and, 

Whereas, the purpose of Brunswick Public Art is to actively encourage the creation of 
art in its many facets for the enjoyment and benefit of the community and its visitors; 
and, 

Whereas, Brunswick Public Art fosters collaborations with individuals and organizations 
to create public art and is committed to maintaining a close, cooperative working 
relationship with the Town in its ongoing efforts; and, 

Whereas, Brunswick Public Art commissioned the artist, Mile Chapin, to create the 
sculpture, “Haven”; and,  

Whereas, the Brunswick Public Art has raised the funds to purchase and install the 
sculpture; and,  

Whereas, the Town Council of Brunswick appreciates and supports the efforts of 
Brunswick Public Arts; and, 

Whereas, the Town Council, the BPA Board and the property owner, JHR Development 
of Maine, have mutually agreed to the placement of the sculpture, “Haven”, at the 
entrance to the Brunswick Station; 

Now therefore, be it resolved, on this first day of June, 2015, that the Brunswick Town 
Council does accept the granite sculpture, “Haven”, by the artist, Miles Chapin, on 
behalf of the Brunswick people and community; and further, 

That the Town of Brunswick does commit to the ownership, insurance and maintenance 
of the sculpture, “Haven”, in perpetuity. 

DATE ENACTED:        ____________________________________________________________ 



 
Intentionally left blank 





 
Intentionally left blank 



 
 

 
MANAGER REPORT A 
BACK UP MATERIALS 
 
 





 
 

 
MANAGER’S REPORT - B 
NO BACK UP MATERIALS 



 
 

 
MANAGER’S REPORT - C 
NO BACK UP MATERIALS 



 
 

MANAGER’S REPORT - D 
BACK UP MATERIALS 
 



 

Town of Brunswick, Maine 
INCORPORATED 1739 

ECONOMIC AND COMMUNITY 

DEVELOPMENT 

85 UNION STREET 

BRUNSWICK, MAINE 04011-2418 

 
 

 

TELEPHONE      207-721-0292 

FAX                      207-725-6663 

 

 

www.brunswickme.org 

 

MEMORANDUM 

TO:   Town Council  

FROM:  Linda Smith, Business Development Manager 

SUBJECT: Community Development Block Grant Programs Guide 

DATE:  May 27, 2015 

 

At the April 16, 2015 Town Council meeting, several Councilors asked for a brief overview of the 

Community Development Block Grant (CDBG) programs. I have prepared a summary chart (attached) on 

the various programs, which are articulated in detail in the Department of Economic and Community 

Development’s Office of Community Development’s 2015 Program Statement (attached). 

Since January 2014, DECD has awarded the Town of Brunswick $1,260,000 for direct business and 

housing assistance activities. The Town currently has an Economic Development application in for 

$350,000 and should hear by mid June 2015 if the request will be invited to move to the CDBG Phase II 

level. 

I will walk us through the programs at the June 1, 2015 Town Council meeting. But as you review the 

chart, it would be helpful to keep the following parameters in mind: 

 CDBG funding is based on an expectation that the Town identify the municipal, housing or 

business project first and then seek funding for a project from multiple sources, including CDBG 

programs; 

 

 CDBG funding decisions are driven by the benefit to low and moderate income persons. These 

benefits can be determined at a community level, at a project level and at an individual business 

level. Brunswick is not defined as an LMI community per se (while a community such as Eastport 

is). For the Town to access many of the CDBG programs for discrete projects, we would have to 

undertake certain actions such as declaring a segment of the community a “slum & blight area” or 

conducting surveys to determine whether a delineated portion of the community is 51% or greater 

LMI. Each business application is evaluated on its commitment to generating job creation or job 

retention at a 51% or greater LMI level. 

 

 DECD’s Office of Community Development issues a Program Statement every year. The chart 

I’ve prepared covers 2015 and many of the application deadlines have already passed. When the 

new Program Statement is issued in January 2016, particulars may have changed - such as 

eligibility, annual funding level, and/or timing. If any of you as Councilors have a project in mind or 

a constituent with a prospective project that might qualify for CDBG program funds, please just 

give me a call and we can walk through the project and the eligibility requirements together. 

Attachment/ 

Cc: John Eldridge, Town Manager  



Maine Department of Economic & Community Development - Community Development Block Grant (CDBG) Programs1 

All CDBG funded activities must meet one of three National Objectives of the program, which are: benefit to low & moderate income persons; prevention or elimination of slum & blight conditioned; and, meeting community development needs having a particular urgency. 

CDBG Programs  Purpose Eligible Activities Eligibility Criteria Brunswick Eligibility Annual Funding Level Timing 
 
 

   Yes No Requires Action  Letter of Intent Application 

Economic Development   
 

         

Grants to Municipalities for 
Direct Business Support  

Provides communities with 
gap funding to assist identified 
businesses in creation / 
retention of jobs for LMI 
persons 

a) to Municipalities: acquisition, 
relocation, demolition, clearance, 
construction, reconstruction, installation 
& rehabilitation associated with public 
infrastructure in support of identified 
business 
b) to Municipalities for Direct Business 
Support: capital & non-capital 
equipment, land & site improvements, 
rehabilitation or construction of 
commercial or industrial buildings, job 
training & working capital  
 
 

Must support an identified 
business (no speculative 
activities); 51% of all jobs 
created / retained must be 
taken by LMI persons; 
jobs must be in community that 
applies; transfer positions not 
counted; maximum CDBG 
participation per job created/ 
retained is $30,000 

X 
a) funding to  
municipality 
 
b) funding 
to business 

  $3,000,000 
Maximum grant award: 

$1,000,000 
Requires match from 

company / private investors 

LOI due first Friday of the 
month in 3 rounds: 
January – March, April – 
June, July – September 
2015 

Applications due 4-24-2015,  
7-31-2015, and 10-30-2015 

MicroEnterprise Assistance Provides funds to assist in 
innovative solutions to 
problems faced by micro-
enterprise businesses 

Working capital & interior renovations, 
façade grants or loans for exterior 
improvements; planning activities to 
complete project development phase 

a) Existing or developing 
business with 5 or fewer 
employees, one of whom 
owns the business and 
whose family income is LMI; 

b) create up to 2 FTE jobs 
which must be taken by LMI 
persons;  

c) facade grant for existing 
business 

 
 

X 
funding to 
business 

 c) must take 
place in 

designated 
slum/blight area 
or under a spot 

blight basis 

$700,000 
Maximum grant award: 

$150,000 to municipality 
$50,000 to business 

Can be grant or loan to 
business 

No match requirement 

LOI due 1st Friday January 
– September, 2015 
 

Applications due 3-28-2015,  
5-29-2015, 7-31-2015 and  
9-25-2015 

Community Development 
 

         

Downtown Revitalization Funds to implement 
comprehensive, integrated & 
innovative solutions to 
downtowns 
 

All that are eligible under Public 
Facilities, Public Infrastructure, Housing 
Assistance or MicroEnterprise programs 

51% low/mod or slum / blight   
 

X 
Project must 
meet LMI or 
slum/blight 

$400,000 LOI due 1-30-2015 Application due 4-17-2015 

Housing Assistance Address housing problems of 
low / mod income persons 

Rehabilitation of occupied or vacant 
single or multi-family housing units (see 
narrative for all eligible activities) 

Targets 51% low/mod income 
by project 
 

X   $1,000,000 
(requires 10-20% in-kind 

and/or cash match) 

LOI due 3-13-2015 Application due 5-1-2015 

Home Repair Network Provides housing 
rehabilitation services for 
low/mod income  

Rehabilitation of occupied or vacant 
single or multi-family housing units (see 
narrative for all eligible activities) 
 

Through ME Community Action 
Programs 

X  
direct to 
citizens 

  $1,700,000 N/A N/A 

Maine Downtown Center 
Assistance 

Provides funding to support 
activities by Maine Downtown 
Center 

Planning, capacity building, technical 
assistance & administration  

All communities except 
entitlement communities & 
Cumberland County except 
Brunswick & Frye island 
 

X 
through 

MCDA lead 
community 

  $100,000   

Public Facilities Provides gap funding for local 
public facility activities which 
alleviate a threat to the health 
& safety of the general public 

Construction, acquisition, 
reconstruction, rehabilitation, site 
clearance, historic preservation & 
relocation assistance 

Must demonstrate that the 
proposed activity alleviates a 
threat to health & safety of 
general public 
 
 

  X 
Project must 

address threat to 
public health & 

safety 

$0 
Maximum grant award: 

$300,000 
Requires 25% cash match 

LOI due 1-16-2015 TBD* 



* Subject to availability of funds   

1) See State of Maine Department of Economic and Community Development’s Office of Community Development’s Community Development Block Grant 2015 Program Statement for full program details.   

CDBG Programs  Purpose Eligible Activities Eligibility Criteria Brunswick Eligibility Annual Funding Level Timing 

    Yes No Requires Action  Letter of Intent Application 

Community Development 
(continued)   

         

Public Infrastructure Provides gap funding for local 
infrastructure activities as part 
of strategy leading to future 
investments 
 

Construction, acquisition, 
reconstruction, installation, & relocation 
assistance; and, planning to complete 
project development phase  

Must demonstrate that the 
project meets the objective of 
51% or greater LMI benefit 

  X 
Project must 
meet LMI or 
slum/blight 

$2,700,000 
Maximum grant award: 

$1,000,000 

LOI due 1-16-2015 Application due 3-6-2015 

Special Projects* 
[approval through Director, 
Office of Community 
Development]  

Projects not funded through 
normal CDBG application 
process  
 

    X 
Must meet 

special project 
criteria 

 

$0 N/A TBD* 

Urgent Need Serious & immediate threats 
to health & welfare which are 
declared through state or 
federal disasters 

Triggered by state or federal declaration a) serious & immediate threat to 
health or welfare of the 
community; b) became a serious 
threat no more than 18 months 
prior to application; c) applicant 
cannot finance on its own; and, 
d) cannot be addressed with 
other sources of funding                         

  X 
Must fit state or 
federal disaster 
requirements 

$0 N/A TBD* 

Workforce Development Addresses community & 
business resource needs by 
providing funding for 
workforce training programs 
which benefit LMI persons 
 

Operating & program material expenses 
for workforce training & skills 
development to address shortage of 
available trained workforce 

51% LMI; targeted groups; new 
service or expansion of existing 
service to the community 

X  
funding to 
business 

  $750,000 LOI due first Friday of the 
month in 4 rounds: 
January – February, 
March-April, May-June, 
July - August, 2015 

Applications due 3-28-2015,  
5-29-2015, 7-31-2015 and  
9-25-2015 



 
 

 
State of Maine 
Community Development Block Grant Program 

 
2015  Program Statement 

 
 
Office of Community Development 
111 Sewall Street, 3rd Floor 
59 State House Station 
Augusta, Maine 04333-0059 
Phone: (207) 624-7484 
Fax: (207) 287-8070 
TTY: 1-800-437-1220  
www.meocd.org 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 



2 
 

2015 PROGRAM STATEMENT 
19-498 DEPARTMENT OF ECONOMIC AND COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT 

CHAPTER 43 COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT BLOCK GRANT (CDBG) PROGRAM 

Contents 

SUMMARY ...................................................................................................................... 3 
SECTION 1. PROGRAM OVERVIEW ............................................................................ 3 

A. CDBG OBJECTIVES .............................................................................................. 3 

B. METHOD OF DISTRIBUTION: ............................................................................... 4 
C. STATE ADMINISTRATION: ................................................................................... 4 
D. PROGRAM TIMEFRAME ....................................................................................... 5 
E. 2015 PROGRAM BUDGET .................................................................................... 6 
F. CERTIFICATIONS .................................................................................................. 7 

G. GENERAL REQUIREMENTS: ............................................................................... 7 
H. EXCLUSIONS: ........................................................................................................ 9 

I. AWARD PROCESS: .............................................................................................. 10 

SECTION 2.  COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT PROGRAMS ............................................  
A. HOUSING ASSISTANCE GRANT PROGRAM ................................................. 11 
B. HOME REPAIR NETWORK PROGRAM ........................................................... 13 

C. PUBLIC FACILITIES GRANT PROGRAM ........................................................ 14 
D. PUBLIC INFRASTRUCTURE GRANT PROGRAM ........................................... 17 
E. DOWNTOWN REVITALIZATION GRANT PROGRAM ..................................... 20 

F. MAINE DOWNTOWN CENTER ASSISTANCE ................................................. 23 
G. WORKFORCE DEVELOPMENT GRANT PROGRAM ...................................... 24 

H. URGENT NEED GRANT PROGRAM ................................................................ 26 
    I.  SPECIAL PROJECTS  PROGRAM…………………….……………………………..28 
SECTION 3. ECONOMIC DEVELOPMENT PROGRAMS ...............................................  

A. ECONOMIC DEVELOPMENT .............................................................................. 29 

B. MICRO-ENTERPRISE ASSISTANCE GRANT PROGRAM ................................. 34 
SECTION 4. TECHNICAL ASSISTANCE ..................................................................... 37 
SECTION 5. REDISTRIBUTION OF GRANT FUNDS .................................................. 37 

SECTION 6. PROGRAM INCOME ............................................................................... 38 
SECTION 7. APPEALS ................................................................................................ 38 

SECTION 8. AMENDMENTS TO THE PROGRAM STATEMENT ............................... 38 
 

 
 
The Office of Community Development reserves the right to fund only those applications deemed to 
be in the best interest of, and that offer definable benefits to, the State of Maine and the Community 
Development Block Grant Program.   
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 

 



3 
 

19-498 CMR DEPARTMENT OF ECONOMIC AND COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT 
CHAPTER 43 COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT BLOCK GRANT (CDBG) PROGRAM 
2015 PROGRAM STATEMENT 
 

 
SUMMARY 
 
This Program Statement describes the method by which 2015 Community Development 
Block Grant (CDBG) program funds will be distributed.  The CDBG program is 
administered pursuant to 5 M.R.S.A 13073.  The 2015 CDBG program was developed 
by the Department of Economic and Community Development (DECD) following a 
review of past programs, a forum with program constituents, 3state-wide public forums 
and a comprehensive assessment of statewide community and economic development 
needs.   In accordance with the Maine Administrative Procedures Act, DECD held a 
public hearing regarding the development of this Program Statement on, October 28, 
2014. 
 

SECTION 1. PROGRAM OVERVIEW 
 

A. CDBG OBJECTIVES 
All CDBG funded activities must meet one of three National Objectives of the program.  
These objectives are: 
 

 Benefit to low and moderate income persons; 
 

 Prevention and/or elimination of slum and blight conditions; and 
 

 Meeting community development needs having a particular urgency. 
 
The Maine CDBG Program serves as a catalyst for local governments to implement 
programs which meet one of the three National Objectives, and: 
 

 Are part of a long-range community strategy; 
 

 Improve deteriorated residential and business districts and local economic 
conditions; 

 

 Provide the conditions and incentives for further public and private investments; 
 

 Foster partnerships between groups of municipalities, state and federal entities, 
multi-jurisdictional organizations, and the private sector to address common 
community and economic development problems; and 

 

 Minimize development sprawl consistent with the State of Maine Growth 
Management Act and support the revitalization of downtown areas. 



4 
 

B. METHOD OF DISTRIBUTION: 
 
DECD, through the Office of Community Development (OCD), offers programs to assist 
municipalities to achieve their community and economic development objectives.  The 
2015 Program Statement provides a description of the selection criteria that OCD will 
use to allocate CDBG funds among communities.  Programs are grouped under the 
three categories listed below. 
  

1. Community Development 
a. Housing Assistance Grants 
b. Home Repair Network 
c. Public Infrastructure Grants 
d. Public Facilities Grants 
e. Downtown Revitalization Grants 
f. Maine Downtown Center Assistance 
g. Workforce Development Grants 
h. Urgent Need Grants 
i. Special Projects   

 

2. Economic Development 
a. Grants to Municipalities for Direct Business Support 
b. Micro-Enterprise Grants 

 

3. Technical Assistance 
 

C. STATE ADMINISTRATION: 
 
1. General Administration Allocation:  Pursuant to Section 106(d) (3) (A) of the 
Housing and Community Development Act of 1974, as amended (the Act), the DECD 
will utilize $100,000 plus 2% of its allocation from the Department of Housing and Urban 
Development (HUD) to administer Maine’s CDBG Program in accordance with Federal 
and State requirements. 

 

2. Technical Assistance Administration Allocation:  Pursuant to Section 106(d) (5) 
of the Act, DECD will utilize up to 1% of its allotment from HUD to provide technical 
assistance in accordance with Federal and State requirements. 
 

3. Exclusion of Entitlement Communities and Counties: The entitlement 
communities of Auburn, Bangor, Biddeford, Lewiston, Portland and all of Cumberland 
County with the exception of Brunswick and Frye Island, are not eligible to receive State 
CDBG program funds.  
   
4. Grant Administration Requirement: 
Grantees must employ or contract with a certified CDBG Grant Administrator and in the 
case of Housing Rehabilitation a qualified Rehabilitation Technician (as employees or 
consultants).  The Office of Community Development must approve waivers of this 
requirement in writing.  All planning activities are exempt from this requirement. 
 

 
 
 



5 
 

D. PROGRAM TIMEFRAME 
Application deadlines – All applications and Letters of Intent must be received at the physical 
location of the Office of Community Development on or before 4:00PM EST on the dates listed 
below. Faxed copies will not be accepted.   

 

Program Letter of Intent Due Date Application Due Date 
By Invitation Only 

Downtown Revitalization January 30, 2015 April 17, 2015 

Economic Development  1st Friday of January, February 
and March** 

April 24, 2015 

* 1st Friday of April, May, and 
June** 

July 31, 2015 

* 1st Friday of July, August and 
September ** 

October 30, 2015 

Housing Assistance March 13, 2015 May 1, 2015 

Micro-Enterprise Assistance 
and  

1st Friday of January, and 
February ** 

March 28, 2015 

* 1st Friday of March and April** May 29, 2015 

* 1st Friday of May and June** July 31, 2015 

* 1st Friday of July and August** September 25, 2015 

Public Facilities January 16, 2015 TBD* 

Public Infrastructure January 16, 2015 March 6, 2015 

Special Projects * N/A TBD* 

Urgent Need N/A TBD 

Workforce Development 1st Friday of January and 
February** 

March 28, 2015 

* 1st Friday of March and April** May 29, 2015 

* 1st Friday of May and June July 31, 2015 

* 1st Friday of July and August** September 25, 2015 

 
*Subject to availability of funds. 
 
** If the first Friday of the month falls on a holiday the Economic Development , 
Workforce Development  and Micro-Enterprise Assistance Letter(s) of Intent will be due 
by 4:00pm on the next business day. 
 
***Should funds be available following the last published Letter of Intent due date, OCD 
will announce additional dates at that time. 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



6 
 

 

 
E. 2015 PROGRAM BUDGET 
 
FY 2015  CDBG Budget                   $10,581,799 
Administration                 311,635 
Technical Assistance Administration              105,817 
Regional Council Planning Assistance              114,347 
 
Community Development 
   
Downtown Revitalization Grants               400,000 
  Home Repair Network Program            1,700,000 
  Housing Assistance Grants            1,000,000 
  Maine Downtown Center Assistance              100,000 
  Public Facilities Grants*                           0 
  Public Infrastructure Grants            2,700,000 
  Special Projects *                          0 
  Urgent Need Grants*                         0 
  Workforce Development Grants               750,000 
   
 

      Economic Development         
                                                                                   

  Business Assistance Grants             2,700,000 
  Micro-Enterprise Assistance Grants              700,000 
 
TOTAL Estimated 2015 CDBG Funds (final amount determined by HUD)      10,581,799 
Funding for individual categories may change based on actual HUD award .  
   
*Funding for these programs may be available based upon redistribution, reallocation 
and/or additional  allocation from HUD. 



7 
 

F. CERTIFICATIONS 
 
All communities applying for CDBG funds must certify that they will: 
 

 Minimize displacement and adhere to a locally adopted displacement policy in 
compliance with section 104(d) of the Housing and Community Development 
Act, 24 CFR part 42; 

 

 Take action to affirmatively further fair housing and comply with the provisions 
of Civil Rights Acts of 1964 and 1968; 

 

 Not attempt to recover certain capital costs of improvements funded in whole 
or in part with CDBG funds; 

 

 Establish a community development plan; 
 

 Meet all required State and Federal public participation requirements; 
 

 Comply with the Federal requirements of Section 319 of Public Law 101-121, 
codified at 31 U.S.C. Section 1352,  regarding government-wide restriction on 
lobbying; 

 

 With the exception of administrative or personnel costs, verify that no person 
who is an employee, agent, consultant, officer, elected officer, or appointed 
official of State or local government or of any designated public agencies, or 
sub-recipients which are receiving CDBG funding may obtain a financial 
interest or benefit, have an interest in or benefit from the activity, or have an 
interest in any contract, subcontract, or agreement with respect to CDBG 
activities;  

 

 Any person or firm associated with the administration of the CDBG program 
award is not on the U.S. Department of Labor’s Debarred and Suspended 
Contractor’s List; and 

 

 Review the project proposed in the application to ensure it complies with the 
community’s comprehensive plan and/or applicable state and local land use 
requirements. 

 

G. GENERAL REQUIREMENTS: 
 
1. Eligible Applicants: All units of general local government in Maine, including 
plantations, except for the entitlement communities of Auburn, Bangor, Biddeford, 
Lewiston, Portland and all of Cumberland County with the exception of Brunswick and 
Frye Island are eligible to apply for and receive State CDBG program funds.  County 
governments may apply on behalf of the Unorganized Territory.  Groups of local 
governments may apply for multi-jurisdictional or joint projects.  Multi-jurisdictional 
applications require designation of one local government as the lead applicant and 
consent for that designation by each participating local government.  Counties may 
apply for the Economic Development or Workforce Development programs on behalf of 
a collaboration of communities.  Eligible applicants, including counties as defined 
above may apply for CDBG assistance on behalf of the five Maine Indian Tribes.  
Maine Indian Tribes are not themselves eligible applicants.  Eligible applicants 



8 
 

applying on behalf of a Maine Indian Tribe are permitted to apply in the same 2015 
CDBG funding category as long as the eligible applicant will not directly benefit from the 
tribal CDBG project. 
  
2. Eligible Activities:  Applications will be reviewed to determine that the activities 
proposed are eligible under Section 105(a) of the Act.  Ineligible activities will not be 
considered. 

 

3. Project Benefit:  Letters of Intent and/or required documentation for all programs will 
be reviewed to verify that the proposed activities meet at least one of the CDBG 
Program national objectives pursuant to section 104(b) 3 of the Act.  If the activity does 
not meet a national objective the application will not be considered for funding. 
  
4. “Growth Related” Preference:  In accordance with M.R.S.A Title 30-A section 
4349-A (3-A), OCD is required to give preference in the award of grants to capital 
investments defined as “growth related” in section 4301(5-B) to communities with 
certified growth management programs or that have adopted a comprehensive plan and 
implementation strategy consistent with the goals and guidelines of the subchapter.  A 
municipality that does not obtain a certificate or finding of consistency within 4 years 
after receipt of the first installment of a financial assistance grant or rejection of an offer 
of financial assistance will receive a low priority. 
 

5. Repayment of Grant Funds:  Recipients must repay on demand to the State of 
Maine all funds expended if CDBG program benefits are not achieved as specified in 
their contract with the DECD. 
 
6. Application Threshold: Incomplete and/or non-conforming applications which do not 
meet the specifications set forth in the 2015 Program Statement and 2015 CDBG 
Application Packages will be removed from the scoring process during the threshold 
review. 
 
7. Financial Commitments: Applications for projects not demonstrating a firm financial 
commitment as required in the application materials will be removed from the scoring 
process during the threshold review. 
 
8. Restriction of Grant Awards:  OCD may deny or restrict the award of grants to 
communities with outstanding audit(s), monitoring findings, or a record of administrative 
misconduct. 
 
9. Past Performance:  In order to be eligible to apply for a 2015 Community 
Development Block Grant program, communities that received CDBG grants in or prior 
to 2011 must have finally closed out their grants prior to application due date.  
Communities that received CDBG grants in 2012 must have conditionally closed their 
grants prior to application due date.  Communities that received CDBG grants in 2013 
must have expended 50% of their benefit activity funds prior to application due date.  
Communities that received 2014 CDBG grants must be under contract with DECD.  All 
Past Performance Criteria will be strictly enforced; however these criteria may be 
waived for just cause by the Director of OCD.  
 
10. Grant Termination:  OCD will terminate a community’s grant if progress on the 
project is not apparent within 6 months, or 3 months in the case of Economic 



9 
 

Development Program and Workforce Development Grants, from the date of contract 
signing. The Office of Community Development may grant waivers for just cause. 
 

H. EXCLUSIONS: 
 
1. Multiple Grants:  Except for the Economic Development grants-Business Assistance 
Grants and Micro-Enterprise Assistance Grants-, eligible applicants may not apply for, 
or benefit from, more than one grant per program category in any grant year.  
Communities participating in multi-jurisdictional applications may submit their own 
applications for the same program as long as they demonstrate that there will not be a 
duplication of program activity/benefit.  
 
2. Subsequent Year Award:  Except for the Economic Development Program-
Business Assistance Grants, Micro-Enterprise Assistance Grants-, and project specific 
Housing Grants units of general local government and Unorganized Territory that 
benefited from a 2014 award may not apply again in that specific program until the 2016 
program.  This exclusion may be waived by the Director of OCD with cause. 
 
 
3. Downtown Revitalization (DR) Grantees:  Communities may not submit a DR 
application if they have received or benefited from two (2) DR awards within the five (5) 
year period prior to the CDBG program year for which applications are being accepted.   
Applications for multi-jurisdictional Downtown Revitalization projects will only be 
eligible if the downtowns are contiguous and each meets the definition of a 
downtown as defined in PL 1999 Ch. 776 (codified at 30-A M.R.S.A. § 4301(5-A)). 
 
4. Housing Assistance Grant Program (HA) Past Performance Requirement: 
Communities are not eligible to apply for a HA grant unless all prior HA grants are 100% 
expended and conditionally closed out.  100% expended also requires that no HA funds 
exist in the housing escrow account. 
 
5. Housing Assistance (HA) Grantees: Communities may not submit a HA application 
for single family rehabilitation if they have received or benefited from two (2) HA awards 
within the five (5) year period prior to the CDBG program year for which applications are 
being accepted.  
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 



10 
 

 
 
I. AWARD PROCESS: 

 
1. Scoring: 
Applicants will be placed in rank order from highest to lowest according to the final 
scores determined by the OCD Review Team.  All program applications with the 
exception of the Urgent Need Grants and the Home Repair Network will be scored on a 
100-point maximum scoring basis with allowance for bonus points where applicable.  
Final scores will be determined by averaging the scores assigned by members of the 
Review Team and adding any applicable bonus point.  Starting at the top of the scoring 
list, applicants will be invited to proceed to the Project Development Phase as funds 
allow.  In the event of a tie in any CDBG program scoring process, consideration 
will be given to the community that is listed as a Service Center.  An invitation into 
the Project Development Phase is not a guarantee of funding or permission to obligate 
funds.  Successful communities will receive an amount determined by the OCD for their 
project. 
 

2. Project Development Phase: 
a. Project Planning:  Details of the project including pre-engineering, bid 
requirements, budget, and/or grant administration. 

 

b. Acceptance of Funds: Public Hearing and Legislative Body Approval for the 
acceptance of funds. 

 

c. Local Certifications:  Local adoption of State and Federal regulations.. 
 

d. Project Benefit:  Verification that proposed activities meet or will meet one of 
the CDBG Program National Objectives. 

 
e. Environmental Review:  Review of project for compliance with State and 
Federal Environmental Regulations. 
 

3. Project Development Timeframe and Assistance: 

The goal of the Project Development Phase is a grant contract for CDBG funds.  An 
OCD Development Program Manager will be assigned to work closely with each 
community to finalize their project.  OCD will rescind the CDBG program award offer if 
the community is not under contract within six months of the date of the award offer and 
invitation into the project development phase process.  For the Economic Development 
programs OCD will rescind the CDBG program award offer if the community is not 
under contract within three months of the date of the award offer and invitation into the 
project development phase process.  The Office of Community Development may grant 
waivers for just cause. 
 



11 
 

SECTION 2.  COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT PROGRAMS 
 

A. HOUSING ASSISTANCE GRANT PROGRAM 
The Housing Assistance Grant (HA) Program provides funding to address housing 
problems of low-and moderate-income persons. Housing Assistance Program (HA) 
funds will be distributed through an annual grant application selection process. 

 

1. Eligibility Requirements for Housing Assistance Applications: Communities may 
not submit a HA single family rehabilitation application if they have received or benefited 
from two HA awards within the five (5) year period prior to the CDBG program year for 
which applications are being accepted.  Multi-jurisdictional applications with more than 3 
communities will not be accepted. 

 

2. Eligible Activities: Eligible HA activities are rehabilitation of occupied or vacant 
single-family or multi-family housing units, same site replacement housing, relocation 
assistance, acquisition, alternative housing, energy conservation, correction of code 
violations, conversion of non-residential structures, demolition, down payment 
assistance, first time homebuyer’s programs, lead based paint removal, new housing 
construction as allowed by HUD regulations, provision of potable water or sewer, 
removal of architectural barriers and eligible planning activities necessary to complete 
the Project Development Phase.   
 
3. Exclusions: See Section 1H (6) (7). 
 
4. Matching Funds: Applicants for housing activities must provide a match (cash or in-
kind) of at least 10 % of the total HA grant award; except for eligible new housing 
construction activities which must provide a cash match of at least 20% of the total HA 
grant award.   
 

5. Maximum HA Grant Amount:  $500,000 
 

6. Maximum Administrative Costs:  The HA Program allows expenditures for general 
and/or rehabilitation administration. The total general and rehabilitation administration 
expenditures may not exceed 15% of the grant amount.  Please refer to OCD Policy 
Statement #2 for more information regarding CDBG administrative costs. 
 

7. Section 8 Housing Quality Standards:  All units assisted or created with HA funds 
must, if possible, meet HUD Section 8 Minimum Housing Quality Standards.  This does 
not apply to projects undertaken to correct specific emergency health and safety issues 
only, i.e. wells, septic, heating units, removal of hazardous materials, energy 
conservation etc.   
 
8. Administrative Capabilities for Housing Rehabilitation Applicants: Applicants for 
HA assistance must demonstrate at the time of submitting the Letter of Intent that they 
have the capacity to administer the program either through municipal staff that is a 
qualified CDBG Rehabilitation Technician; or have completed a procurement process 
under the guidelines of the CDBG program (24 CFR Part 85) to hire a qualified CDBG 
Rehabilitation Technician subject to award of a HA contract. 

 

9. Selection Process:  The selection process for all HA applications will consist of two 
stages:   



12 
 

(a)Stage 1: 
Letter of Intent: All communities wishing to submit a HA application must submit 
a Letter of Intent to OCD on or before March 14, 2015 according to the 
requirements set forth in the 2015 Housing Assistance Application Package. 

 (b)Stage 2: 
Application:  The maximum length of an application is four pages (not 
counting required attachments).  The application deadline for the HA Program 
is 4:00PM on May 3, 2015.  Members of the Review Team will assign a Review 
Point Total for each application reviewed.  Review Point Totals will consist of the 
sum of the three scoring areas below and be determined by the total of each sub-
scoring area.  A maximum of 100 points is obtainable. 

     
    Impact (40 points):   

 

 A description of the specific housing problems to be addressed with 
HA funds – 15 points 

 

 How the problems were identified – 10 points 
 

 How these issues affect LMI persons in the community or region – 15 
points 

 Development Strategy (40 points):   
 

 A description of the plan proposed to implement the housing project – 
20 points 

 
 

 Summary of the activities and use of HA funds –20 points  
   

    Citizen Participation (20 points):   
 

 How overall citizen participation process directly relates to identification 
of solution strategies and application development - 4 points 

 

 Effective use of any media (newspapers, radio, TV, etc.) to further 
public awareness and participation – 4 points  

 

 Relevance of listed meeting/hearing activities/comments (not counting 
required public hearing) on application and project development – 4 
points  

 

 Involvement of potential LMI project beneficiaries in development of 
the application and project and how the required public hearing relates 
to the application development and citizen participation process – 4 
points 

 

 How other local resources (cash and in-kind) are directly related to the 
project and the establishment of a cash value equivalent for all in-kind 
commitments – 4 points 

 

11. Final Application Score – Each application will receive a Final Application Score 
consisting of the average of the scores assigned by members of the Review Team.  
Starting at the top of the scoring list, applicants will be invited to proceed to the Project 
Development Phase as funds allow.   



13 
 

B. HOME REPAIR NETWORK PROGRAM 
 
The Home Repair Network Program (HRN) provides funding to address housing 
problems of low- and moderate-income persons by combining CDBG funding with the 
Maine State Housing Authority and the United States Department of Agriculture Rural 
Development Program funding.  This program will provide housing rehabilitation 
services administered on a regional basis throughout Maine. as stated below. 
 
1. Special Threshold Criteria and Certifications:  HRN Program funds will be 
distributed through a set aside of CDBG funds provided to the City of Rockland as the 
lead community.  The lead community will establish a legally binding contract with each 
of the participating Maine Community Action Agencies or other approved entity 
identified for the Home Repair Network delivery system as approved by the Director of 
the OCD. 
 
2. Eligible Activities: Eligible activities under the HRN Program are rehabilitation of 
occupied or vacant single-family or multi-family housing units, demolition, same site 
replacement housing, provision of potable water and sewer, removal/mitigation of lead-
based paint, asbestos, radon, or other hazardous material, removal of architectural 
barriers and the Critical Access Ramp Program (via Alpha One). 
   
3. Housing units ineligible for Home Repair Network assistance: Housing units 
located in communities that have current CDBG Housing Rehabilitation programs or the 
entitlement communities of Auburn, Bangor, Biddeford, Lewiston, Portland and all of 
Cumberland County with the exception of Brunswick and Frye Island are not eligible for 
financial assistance under the HRN program.     
 

4. Maximum HRN Grant Amount:  $1,700,000. Allocations to each of the established 
regions will be determined by the Office of Community Development. 

 
5. Maximum Administrative Costs:  The HRN Program allows expenditures for 
general and rehabilitation administration.  The total general and rehabilitation 
administration expenditures may not exceed 20% of the grant amount.  The City of 
Rockland is allowed a maximum of $5,000 in administrative funding. 

 
6. Section 8 Housing Quality Standards: All units assisted or created with HRN funds 
will strive to meet HUD Section 8 Minimum Housing Quality Standards if possible.  This 
does not apply to projects undertaken to correct specific emergency health and safety 
issues only, i.e. wells, septic, heating units, removal of hazardous materials, energy 
conservation etc.  In addition, all units must comply with other applicable standards 
included in the HRN contract. 
 



14 
 

  

C. PUBLIC FACILITIES GRANT PROGRAM 
 
The Public Facilities Grant (PF) Program provides gap funding for local public facility 
activities, which alleviate a threat to the health and safety of the general public.  
   

1. Eligible Activities:  Eligible activities in the PF program are construction, acquisition, 
reconstruction, rehabilitation, site clearance, historic preservation, and relocation 
assistance associated with public facilities projects and eligible planning activities 
necessary to complete the Project Development Phase. 
 
2. Exclusions: See Section 1H (1) (2). 
 

3. Match:  All communities applying for PF funds must certify that they will provide a 
cash match of at least 25 percent of the total grant award.  This match may consist of all 
non-CDBG loans, grants, endowments, etc. contributed to the project. 
 

4. Maximum PF Grant Amount: $300,000 
 
5. Demonstration of Need:  Applicants must have demonstrated that the proposed 
activity will alleviate a threat to the health and safety of the general public.  This 
demonstration must have been made part of the Letter of Intent and Verification 
submitted to the Office of Community Development on or before January 16, 2015. 

 
6. Demonstration of National Objective:  Applicants must demonstrate that the 
project meets the National Objective of a) benefiting 51% or greater low/moderate 
income persons or b) preventing or eliminating slum or blighting conditions.  Census 
information, a certified target area survey, or an officially adopted declaration of 
slum/blight conditions conforming to the requirements of Title 30-A M.R.S.A. § 5202 and 
HUD must be submitted to OCD.  For spot blight activities documentation must be 
submitted to OCD substantiating the condition of the structure as “blighted.”  These 
demonstrations must be made as part of the Letter of Intent and Verification of 
CDBG National Objective submitted to OCD on or before 4:00pm on Friday, 
January 16, 2015. 
 

7. Priority for Public Facilities Projects:  Regional Service Centers and Contiguous 
Census Designated Places and Compact Urban Areas Designated as Regional Service 
Centers and activities supporting the revitalization of downtown areas will be given 
priority during the evaluation and selection process for awarding PF program funds.  
Lists of all service center communities are available from the OCD. 
  

8. Selection Process:  The selection process will consist of two stages. 
 
(a) Stage 1: 

Letter of Intent and Verification of CDBG National Objective: All communities 
wishing to submit a PF application must submit a Letter of Intent and Verification 
of CDBG National Objective to OCD on or before 4:00PM on Friday January 16, 
2015 according to the requirements set forth in the 2015 PF application package. 

 
 
 

 



15 
 

(b) Stage 2: 
Application:  The application deadline for the PF program will be announced by 
the OCD, pending the availability of funds.  Members of the Review Team will 
assign a Review Point Total for each application reviewed.  Review Point Totals 
will consist of the sum of the three scoring areas below and be determined by the 
total of each sub-scoring area.  A maximum of 100 points is obtainable 

 

Impact (40 points):   
 

 A description of the why the project is necessary – 8 points 
 

 Conditions warranting new construction or renovations, including 
health and safety concerns– 10 points 

 

 How these conditions affect LMI persons in the community or region – 
10 points 

 

 Size and make up of user base of facility – 6 points 
 

 Why PF funds are necessary for project – 6 points 
 

Development Strategy (40 points):   
 

 A description of the new or renovated facility, including size, design 
factors, alleviation of health and safety factors, utilities and location – 
10 points 

 

 Specific use of PF funds – 10 points 
 

 Positive effect on LMI persons – 10 points 
 

 Project timeline, details of engineering or architectural work completed 
to date, proposed date for start of construction, tasks remaining prior to 
project implementation, final commitment of other funds and how PF 
funds will be expended within a 12 month period – 10 points  

   

Citizen Participation (20 points):   
 

 How overall citizen participation process directly relates to identification 
of solution strategies and application development - 4 points 

 

 Effective use of any media (newspapers, radio, TV, etc.) to further 
public awareness and participation – 4 points  

 

 Relevance of listed meeting/hearing activities/comments (not counting 
required public hearing) on application and project development – 4 
points  

 

 Involvement of potential LMI project beneficiaries in development of 
the application and project and how the required public hearing relates 
to the application development and citizen participation process – 4 
points 

 

 How other local resources (cash and in-kind) are directly related to the 
project and the establishment of a cash value equivalent for all in-kind 
commitments – 4 points 

 

 
 



16 
 

9. Final Application Score – Each application will receive a Final Application Score 
consisting of the average of the scores assigned by members of the Review Team. 
Starting at the top of the scoring list, applicants will be invited to proceed to the Project 
Development phase as funds allow.   



17 
 

D. PUBLIC INFRASTRUCTURE GRANT PROGRAM 
 

The Public Infrastructure Grant (PI) Program provides gap funding for local 
infrastructure activities, which are part of a community development strategy leading to 
future public and private investments. 
 

1. Eligible Activities:  Eligible activities in the PI Program are construction, acquisition, 
reconstruction, installation, relocation assistance associated with public infrastructure, 
and public infrastructure limited to supporting construction of fully-funded affordable LMI 
housing;  eligible planning activities necessary to complete the Project Development 
Phase. 
 
2. Exclusions: See Section 1H (1) (2). 

 

3. Match:  All communities applying for PI funds must certify that they will provide a 
cash match of at least 25 percent of the total grant award.  This match may consist of all 
non-CDBG loans, grants etc. contributed to the project. 
 

4. Program Activities:  Applicants may apply for one or more activities within a specific 
activity group.  Applicants cannot mix activities from different activity groups in an 
application. 
  

 Activity Group Numbers:  
   

1) Water system installation/improvements, sewer system         
installation/improvements, water/sewer system hookups,  
storm drainage, utility infrastructure, dams with the main  
purpose of providing the primary water storage facility for  
an active water district or municipal system. Maximum Amount: 
$1,000,000 

       
2) Infrastructure in support of new LMI affordable fully financed housing. 

Maximum Amount: $1,000,000  
   
 

5. Funding Restrictions:  PI funds may not be used to assist infrastructure for the 
purpose of job creation/retention.  Job creation/ retention infrastructure activities are 
eligible in the Economic Development Program.  With the exception of proposals for 
infrastructure in support of new housing construction and sewer/water system hookups, 
no housing activities may be assisted with PI funds.   

 
6. Demonstration of National Objective: Applicants must demonstrate that the project 
meets the National Objective of benefiting 51% or greater low/moderate income 
persons via Census information, or a certified target area survey.  These 
demonstrations must be made as part of the Letter of Intent and Verification of 
CDBG National Objective submitted to OCD on or before 4:00pm on Friday 
January 16, 2015. 

 
7. Selection Process:  The selection process for all PI applications will consist of two 
stages: 
 
 
 



18 
 

(a) Stage 1: 
Letter of Intent and Verification of CDBG National Objective:  All 
communities wishing to submit a PI application must submit a Letter of Intent and 
Verification of CDBG National Objective to OCD on or before 4:00PM on Friday 
January 16, 2015 according to the requirements set forth in the 2015 PI 
application package. 

(b) Stage 2: 
Application:  The application deadline for the PI Program is 4:00PM on March 6  
2015.  Each application will be rated in relation to all others in a two-stage 
process.  Members of the Review Team will assign a Review Point Total for each 
application reviewed.  Review Point Totals will consist of the sum of the three 
scoring areas below and be determined by the total of each sub-scoring area.   

 

Impact (40 points):   
 

 A description of why the project is necessary, previous efforts to 
address needs, and how the project was prioritized locally –6 points 

 

 What engineering firms and/or regulatory agencies have verified the 
infrastructure problems, and what studies and testing have been done 
that corroborate the need– 6 points 

 

 How the verified health, safety and welfare conditions affect users and 
others in the community and region –8 points 

 

 Size and demographic makeup of user base and target area of 
projected infrastructure project –10 points 

 

 Why PI funds are necessary to fill a funding gap, what other state 
and/or federal agency funding is involved, capacity of the utility or town 
to borrow, and how match funds will work with PI funds to implement 
the project –10 points 

 

Development Strategy (40 points):   
 

 A description of the proposed infrastructure improvements, including 
size, capacity, design, utilities and fit with existing systems – 10 points 

 

 Positive impacts on health, safety and welfare of users directly 
attributable to proposed PI expenditures –5 points 

 

 Extent of financial benefits to users; list current user rates, what rates 
will be if PI funding is approved, and list what user rates will be if the 
project is built without PI funding –15 points 

 

 Project timeline: list tasks necessary to begin implementation.  Identify 
work already completed, such as engineering, design and final 
commitment of other funds.  Identify when remaining tasks will be 
completed.  Estimate a project completion date and describe why 
project timeline is feasible –10 points  

 
Citizen Participation (20 points):   

 

 How overall citizen participation process directly relates to identification 
of solution strategies and application development - 4 points 

 



19 
 

 Effective use of any media (newspapers, radio, TV, etc.) to further 
public awareness and participation – 4 points  

 

 Relevance of listed meeting/hearing activities/comments (not counting 
required public hearing) on application and project development – 4 
points  

 

 Involvement of potential LMI project beneficiaries in to the application 
development and citizen participation process – 4 points 

 

 How other local resources (cash and in-kind) are directly related to the 
project and the establishment of a cash value equivalent for all in-kind 
commitments – 4 points 

 development of the application and project and how the required public 
hearing relates  
 

8. Final Score – Each application will receive a Final Application Score consisting of the 
average of the scores assigned by members of the Review Team. Starting at the top of 
the scoring list, applicants will be invited to proceed to the Project Development Phase 
as funds allow.   



20 
 

  
E. DOWNTOWN REVITALIZATION GRANT PROGRAM 

 

The Downtown Revitalization Grant (DR) Program provides funds to communities to 
implement comprehensive, integrated, and innovative solutions to the problems facing 
their downtown districts.  These community revitalization projects must be part of a 
strategy that targets downtown service and business districts and will lead to future 
public and private investment.  Qualified applicant communities must have a downtown 
district meeting the definition in 30-A M.R.S.A. Section 4301(5-A). 
 

1. Eligible activities - include all those eligible under the Public Facilities, Public 
Infrastructure, Housing Assistance or Micro Enterprise Assistance programs as relevant 
to the revitalization of a downtown district; and eligible planning activities necessary to 
complete the Project Development Phase. 
 
2. Exclusions: See Section 1H (4) (5). 

 

3. Match – All communities applying for DR Program funds must certify that they will 
provide a cash match equivalent to 25 percent of the total grant award.  This match may 
consist of all non-CDBG loans, grants, etc. contributed to the project. 
 

4. Planning Requirements:  Applicants must have completed a comprehensive 
downtown revitalization planning process within the past five years.  Communities with 
plans older than five years must demonstrate that their plans are under active 
implementation, the action plan remains valid, or have been updated within the past 5 
years.  The proposed DR activities must be in the plan as recommended actions 
necessary for downtown revitalization. 

 

5. Maximum DR Award:  $400,000 
 

6. Bonus Points for Applicants with Maine Downtown Center Designation:  
Applicants will receive three bonus points if they have been designated as a Main Street 
Maine Community by the Maine Downtown Center, or one bonus point if they have 
been designated as a Maine Downtown Network Community. 

 

7. Demonstration of National Objective: Applicants must demonstrate that the project 
meets the National Objective of 1) benefiting 51% or greater low/moderate income 
persons or 2) preventing or eliminating slum or blighting conditions.  Census 
information, a certified town-wide income survey, or an officially adopted declaration of 
slum/blight conditions conforming to the requirements of Title 30-A M.R.S.A § 5202 and 
HUD must be submitted to OCD.  These demonstrations must be made as part of 
the Letter of Intent and Verification of CDBG National Objective submitted to OCD 
on or before 4:00pm on Friday, January 30, 2015. 

  

8. Selection Process – The selection process will consist of two stages 
 
(a) Stage 1: 

Letter of Intent and Verification of CDBG National Objective: 
All communities wishing to submit a DR application must submit a Letter of Intent 
and Verification of CDBG National Objective to OCD on or before 4:00PM on 
Friday January 30, 2015 according to the requirements set forth in the 2015 DR 
application package. 



21 
 

(b) Stage 2: 
Application:  The maximum length of an application is six pages, not counting 
required attachments. The application deadline for the DR Program is 4:00PM 
on Friday, April 17, 2015.  Each application will be rated in relation to all others.  
Members of the Review Team will assign a Review Point Total for each 
application reviewed.  Review Point Totals will consist of the sum of the four 
scoring areas below and be determined by the total of each sub-scoring area.   

 

Impact (40 points):   
 

 Describe the scope and magnitude of the problems you seek to 
address, and how they are obstacles for revitalizing the downtown. – 8 
points 

 
 

 Explain how these problems negatively impact the viability of existing 
downtown businesses, or new development and expansion. –12 points 

 

 Demonstrate how the problems affect LMI persons, or how they 
contribute to slum/blight conditions.  –8 points 

 

 Explain why DR funds are necessary for the project, and describe what 
efforts have been made and where you have searched to secure other 
grant or loan funds, –12 points 

 

Development of Strategy (40 points):   
 

 Clearly link the proposed DR activities to action steps outlined in your 
community’s Downtown Plan, and  explain how the project will 
stimulate economic activity in the downtown. –12 points 

 

 List the specific activities to be addressed in this downtown 
revitalization effort, and identify the tasks to be undertaken with DR 
funds and the activities to be undertaken with each other source of 
funds. –12 points 

 

 Define how the proposed DR activities provide a solution to the 
problems and assist in improving the area’s viability, and how the 
activities will have a positive impact on LMI persons, or on alleviation 
of the slum/blight conditions. –8 points 

 

 Describe the capacity and experience of the administrator who will be 
implementing the project, describe the engineering and design work 
completed to date, provide a project timeline, and explain how DR 
funds will be expended in a timely manner. –  8 points 

 
  

Citizen Participation (20 points):   
 

 Effective use of media (newspapers, radio, TV, web etc.) to further public 
awareness and participation. – 4 points  

 

 Relevance of listed meeting/hearing comments (not counting required 
public hearing) and the overall citizen participation process in application 
and project development. – 4 points  

 

 Involvement of downtown and local businesses, Chambers of Commerce, 
development groups or other business related organizations in 



22 
 

identification of problems and development of the application and project. 
– 4 points 

 

 Involvement of potential LMI project beneficiaries in development of the 
application and project, and how the required public hearing relates to the 
application development and citizen participation process. – 4 points 

 

 How other local resources (cash and in-kind) are directly related to the 
project, and the establishment of a cash value equivalent for all in-kind 
commitments. – 4 points 

 

Maine Downtown Center Designation Bonus – 3 bonus points will be 
assigned to each applicant community designated as a Main Street Maine 
Community by the Maine Downtown Center, and a 1 bonus point will be awarded 
to those communities designated as a member of the Maine Downtown Network. 

 
Business Friendly Community Designation Bonus – 3 bonus points will be 
assigned to each applicant community certified as a Business-Friendly 
Community at time of application. 

 
9. Final Application Score – Each application will receive a Final Application Score 
consisting of the average of the scores assigned by members of the Review Team 
added to any applicable Maine Downtown Center Bonus and Business Friendly 
Community Bonus.  Starting at the top of the scoring list, applicants will be invited to 
proceed to the Project Development Phase as funds allow.   
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



23 
 

 
 

F. MAINE DOWNTOWN CENTER ASSISTANCE 
(Limited to a lead community selected by OCD) 
 
The Maine Downtown Center Assistance (MDCA) provides funding to support activities 
undertaken by the Maine Downtown Center on behalf of communities addressing critical 
needs in established downtown areas.    
 
1. Special Threshold Criteria and Certifications:  MDCA funds will be distributed 
through a set aside of CDBG funds provided to a lead community.  The lead community 
will establish a legally binding contract with the Maine Downtown Center as approved by 
OCD. 

 
2. Eligible Activities: Eligible activities under the MDCA are planning, capacity 
building, technical assistance and administration directly related to furthering the Maine 
Downtown Center’s objectives in building vibrant, sustainable Maine downtowns.  
Assistance will be available to Main Street Maine communities as well as communities 
not currently so designated.  Assistance will be made available as determined by the 
Maine Downtown Center and OCD. 
   

3. Communities Ineligible for MDCA Assistance: The entitlement communities of 
Auburn, Bangor, Biddeford, Lewiston, Portland and all of Cumberland County with the 
exception of Brunswick and Frye Island are not eligible for financial assistance under 
the MDCA.    

 
4. Maximum Administrative Costs: The host community is allowed a maximum of 
$1,000 in administrative funding. 
 

5. Maximum MDCA Grant Amount:  $100,000. 
 

 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



24 
 

 

G. WORKFORCE DEVELOPMENT GRANT PROGRAM 
The Workforce Development Grant (WDG) Program addresses community and 
business resource needs by providing funding for operating expenses, equipment, and 
program materials for workforce training programs which will benefit low/moderate 
income (LMI) persons. 
 

1. Eligible Activities:  Eligible activities include operating and program material 
expenses for the purpose of providing workforce training and skills development to 
address the shortage of an available trained workforce.  Other eligible public service 
activities associated with the project are allowed. Planning activities necessary to 
complete the Project Development Phase are eligible activities.  Structural changes 
such as construction, renovation, or rehabilitation are not eligible for WDG funding. 
Program development and marketing materials are not eligible expenses under this 
grant. 
 

2. Project Benefit:  Eligible WDG projects must provide benefits to one of the groups of 
persons listed below: 
 

(a)  Participants in a program where 51% or greater of the persons receiving 
benefit from WDG activities are determined to be LMI. 
  

 

(b) Persons who are members of the following groups that are currently 
presumed by HUD to meet benefit requirements.  The presumption may be 
challenged if there is substantial evidence the group served by the project is 
most likely not comprised of principally LMI persons; 

 

 Abused Children (Does not include “at-risk” youth) 

 Battered Spouses (Does not include all victims of domestic violence) 

 Elderly Persons (62 years +, or 55 years + for housing) 

 Severely Disabled Adults 

 Homeless Persons 

 Illiterate Adults 

 Migrant Farm Workers 

 Persons Living with AIDS; or 
 

3. All communities applying for WDG funds must certify that: The activity 
represents a new service to the community; or a quantifiable increase in the level of an 
existing service; 
 
4. Maximum WDG Amount: $100,000 
 

5. Selection Process:  The selection process will consist of two stages  
 
(a) Stage 1: 

Letter of Intent: All communities wishing to submit a WDG application must 
submit a Letter of Intent.  Refer to Page 5 of this document for Letter of Intent 
due dates and deadlines.   After review for completeness and eligibility, units of 
general local governments will be invited to make a full application. 
 



25 
 

(b) Stage 2: 
Application: The maximum length of an application is four pages, not counting 
required attachments. Members of the Review Team will assign a Review Point 
Total for each application reviewed.  Review Point Totals will consist of the sum 
of the three scoring areas below and be determined by the total of each sub-
scoring area.  A maximum of 100 points is obtainable. 

 

Impact (40 points):   
 

 Conditions requiring a new or expanded service – 15 points 
 

 Issues faced by service providers including capacity, finances and staffing 
– 15 points 

 

 Why WDG funds are critical for the project – 10 points 
 

Development Strategy (40 points):   
 

 A description of the new or expanded service, specific use of WDG funds, 
including how this service will resolve identified problems, and why this 
service will be more effective than existing services for the targeted 
beneficiaries – 10 points 

 

 How WD funds will be utilized to assist LMI persons or a HUD approved 
Limited Clientele group – 10 points 

 

 Project timeline, including a start date, tasks completed to date, how WDG 
funds will be expended in a timely manner, and method of tracking 
success – 10 points  

 

 Capacity and qualifications of the service provider implementing the 
project, including familiarity with the needs of project beneficiaries – 10 
points 

   

 

Citizen Participation (20 points):   
 

 How overall citizen participation process directly relates to identification 
of solution strategies and application development - 5 points 

 

 Effective use of any media (newspapers, radio, TV, etc.) to further 
public awareness and participation – 5 points  

 

 Relevance of listed meeting/hearing activities/comments (not counting 
required public hearing) on application and project development – 5 
points  

 

 Involvement of potential LMI project beneficiaries in development of the 
application and project and how the required public hearing relates to 
the application development and citizen participation process – 5 points 

 

 

6. Final Application Score – Each application will receive a Final Application Score 
consisting of the average of the scores assigned by members of the Review Team. 
Starting at the top of the scoring list, applicants will be invited to proceed to the Project 
Development Phase as funds allow.  An application must have a minimum score of 70 
in order to be funded. 
 



26 
 

H. URGENT NEED GRANT PROGRAM 
 
The Urgent need Grant (UN) Program provides funding to communities to address 
serious and immediate threats to health and welfare which are declared state or federal 
disasters. 
 
1. Project Eligibility:  Pursuant to Section 104 (b) 3 of the Housing and Community 
Development Act of 1974, as amended (see 24 CFR Section 570.483(d)), the applicant 
must address a community development need which meets all four criteria listed below: 
 

(a) poses a serious and immediate threat to the health or welfare of the 
community; 

 
(b) originated or became a direct threat to public health and safety no more than 
18 months prior to submission of the application; 

 
(c) is a project the applicant cannot finance on its own.  “Cannot finance on its 
own” means, that the town’s tax burden, regulatory structure, utility user fees, 
bonding capacity, or previous or existing budgetary commitments, precludes it 
from assuming the additional financial obligation needed for this project; and 

 
(d) cannot be addressed with other sources of funding. 

 
2. Program Requirements: 
 

(a) Necessary Documentation:  The emergency situation must require 
immediate action to alleviate the serious and imminent threat of injury or loss of 
life resulting from a natural or man-made cause. 
  
(b) State or Federal Declaration of Disaster: The applicant must submit 
documentation that the project to be assisted with UN funds will take place in an 
area that has received a state or federal declaration of disaster.  In addition, the 
activities to be assisted must be a direct result of the event leading to the 
declaration.  This requirement may be waived by the Director of OCD with just 
cause. 
 
(c) Application Submittal:  Applicants must submit a complete UN application 
that includes all required information and documentation. 

 
3. Selection Process:  The selection process will consist of two stages:  an application 
phase and a project development phase. 
 

(a) Stage 1: 
 
Application:  An UN application must include the following: 
 

 documentation that the emergency situation was prompted by natural or man-
made causes that pose an imminent threat of injury or loss of life; 

 



27 
 

 certification that the proposal is designed to address an urgent need and an 
immediate response is required to halt the threat of injury or loss of life; 

 

 information regarding when the urgent need condition occurred or developed 
into a threat to health and safety; 

 

 evidence confirming the applicant is unable to finance implementation on its 
own; and, 

 

 documentation that other financial resources are not available to implement 
the proposal. 

 

 a copy of a state or federal declaration of disaster. 
 

(b) Stage 2: 
Project Development:  Prior to consideration of a grant award, all UN proposals 
must meet the four eligibility criteria listed above and the Program requirements.  
Project Development Phase applications must comply with the following: 

 
Project Planning:  Details of the project including engineering, cost 
analysis, feasibility, and structural analysis as necessary. 
 
Management Plan:  Details of the structure and methods established by 
the community for program management. 
 
Regulations:  Project Development Phase applications will be reviewed 
for compliance with State and Federal regulations. 

 
4. Approval Process:  Applications will be accepted on a first-come first-served 
basis.  Following receipt of an application, OCD shall review the application and verify 
that it contains all the required information.  Eligible planning activities necessary to 
complete the Project Development Phase may be included in the UN grant total.  
Notification to the applicant of the Office of Community Development’s decision will 
initiate the Project Development Phase process necessary for contract award. 

 



28 
 

 
I. SPECIAL PROJECTS PROGRAM 

 
The Special Projects Program provides funds to projects that are not funded through the 
normal CDBG application process.  SP funds will be used for alternative OCD grant 
activities and partnerships that meet the community or economic development  needs of  
municipalities and CDBG National Objectives in the State of Maine.  Approval for the 
use of SPMF funds is through the Director, Office of Community Development. 



29 
 

SECTION 3. ECONOMIC DEVELOPMENT PROGRAMS 
 

A. ECONOMIC DEVELOPMENT  
 

The Economic Development program (EDP) provides communities with gap funding to 
assist identified businesses in the creation/retention of jobs for low-and moderate-
income persons.    
 

1. Eligible Activities by Group Number:  .   
 

Group Numbers            Maximum Award  
 

a) Grants to Municipalities: for acquisition, relocation,             $1,000,000 
demolition, clearance, construction, reconstruction, 
installation and rehabilitation associated with public  
infrastructure projects such as water and sewer improvements,  
flood and drainage improvements, publicly-owned commercial  
and industrial buildings, parking, streets, curbs, gutters, sidewalks, etc.    
All public infrastructure must be owned by the municipality or public  
or private utility and be in support of an identified business. 

 

b)  Grants to Municipalities for Direct Business Support:             $1,000,000   
for capital and non-capital equipment, land and site improvements,  
rehabilitation or construction of commercial or industrial buildings,  
job training, working capital and capital equipment and be in  
support of an identified business.  Acquisition is not an allowable  
activity under this group. 

 
2. Exclusions:  

 Applicants may apply in only one specific activity group 

 EDP funds cannot be used to refinance existing debt.   

 All EDP activities must be in support of an identified business; speculative 
activities are excluded. 

 Communities receiving an EDP award may not receive any other EDP award for 
the same project or business during the same program year or for the same 
project or business from a prior program year that has not met final closeout 
status.   
 

3. Project Benefit:  All projects must document that at a minimum, 51% of all jobs 
created or retained as a result of the funded activity must be taken/held by persons of 
low and moderate income as defined by HUD.  Jobs created/retained must be in the 
community applying for the EDP award, new jobs to that community and not associated 
with any other branches of the assisted business located in another community.  
Transfer positions cannot be counted toward the job creation/retention requirements.  In 
the event that job creation requirements are not met, the applicant community will 
be responsible for immediate repayment to DECD of all CDBG funds expended on 
the project. 

 
4. Program Dollars per Job: The maximum CDBG participation per job created or 
retained with EDP funds is $30,000.   

 



30 
 

5. Full Time permanent Jobs: In determining CDBG National Objective compliance 
with jobs created or retained only Permanent jobs may be counted; temporary jobs may 
not.  Full time jobs require a worker to work at least 1750 hours per year.  Part time jobs 
require a worker to work at least 875 hours but less than 1750 hours per year.  Part-
time jobs must be converted to Full Time Equivalents (FTE).  An FTE is defined as two 
part time jobs.  Seasonal jobs may count only if the seasonal job lasts long enough and 
provides sufficient income to be considered the employee's principal occupation.  
(Contact OCD prior to counting seasonal jobs towards LMI benefit.)  All permanent jobs 
created by the project must be counted, regardless of funding source(s).  Jobs indirectly 
created by the project (i.e., remote location, “trickle down” jobs) do not count. 

  
 

6. Maximum Project Size for Utilizing EDP Funds: $3,000,000 Phasing of projects to 
make the total cost appear to be below the maximum project size is expressly 
forbidden.  
 
7. Program Requirements: 
 

(a) EDP Letter of Intent Due Dates:  
All communities wishing to submit a EDP application must submit a Letter of 
Intent.  Refer to Page 5 of this document for Letter of Intent due dates and 
deadlines.   After review for completeness and eligibility, units of general local 
governments will be invited to make a full application. 
. 
 

(b) EDP Application Due Dates: By invitation only as a result of accepted Letter 
of Intent. 

 

(c) Necessary and Appropriate:  EDP assistance to a business must be for 
projects that are necessary and appropriate.  The application must describe the 
need for program assistance, reasonableness of the amount requested, and 
assurance that the assistance provided is commensurate with the community 
benefits that will accrue from the project.  Documentation must be provided 
that the project cannot proceed without program participation and that 
program funds provide gap financing. 

 

(d) Compliance with Benefit Certification Requirements:  The business and 
the applicant community, under the direction of the Program Manager assigned 
to the project, must comply with documentation requirements for jobs 
created/jobs retained on a project including but not limited to benefit surveys, 
income verification and periodic reporting that the Office of Community 
Development may require.    
 

(e) EDP Matching Funds Requirements:  Communities applying for Economic 
Development Program funds must certify that a 100% cash match of the total 
EDP award will be provided.  Matching funds must be directly related to the 
activities undertaken with EDP funding. 

 

(f) EDP Projects in Support of Retail Businesses:  OCD may accept an EDP 
application in support of a retail business activity only under the following  
limited conditions: 

 



31 
 

 The retail business represents the provisions of new products and services 
previously unavailable in the community or is a tourism-related business; and 

 

 The development or expansion of the retail business represents a net 
economic gain for the community and the region.  Applications supporting a 
retail business or businesses are required to certify that the development 
represents a new overall gain for the region’s economy and not a shift from 
existing established businesses to a new or expanded one; and 

 

 The retail business is located in either a downtown district meeting the 
definition in 30-A M.R.S. Section 4301 (5-A); or a designated local growth 
area contained in an adopted and consistent comprehensive plan; and  
 

 At least 50% of the jobs created by the retail business must be full time jobs. 
 

 
8. Selection Process:  The selection process will consist of two stages.  Members of 
the Review Team will assign a Review Point Total for each application reviewed.  
Review Point Totals will consist of the sum of the three scoring areas below and any 
applicable bonus points.  The following criteria will be used: 
 
(a) Stage 1: 

Letter of Intent;  All communities wishing to submit an EDP application must first 
submit a Letter of Intent.  After review for completeness and eligibility, units of 
general local governments may be invited to make a full application.  Please refer to 
Page 5 of this document for Program deadlines and due dates. 

 
(b) Stage 2: 

Application: Members of the Review Team will assign a Review Point Total for 
each application reviewed.  Review Point Totals will consist of the sum of the three 
scoring areas below and be determined by the total of each sub-scoring area.  A 
maximum of 100 points is obtainable. 

 

Problem Statement (40 points) -  
Scope (15 points)  

 Detail the problems or needs facing the community/business to be assisted.  
 

 Tell how these problems relate to job creation or job retention activities.  
 

 Describe how the overall financial viability of the community/business is 
affected by the problems or needs. 

Impact (10 points) 

 Identify how employment opportunities for persons of low/moderate income 
are negatively affected by the identified problems. 

 

 Emphasize the importance of the affected business in relation to the stability 
of the community/region and its current financial well being including property 
tax analysis before and after the proposed activities. 

Need (15 points) 

 Identify reasons why the community/business is unable to finance the 
proposed project on its own, or with assistance from other sources. 

 

 Include a narrative that highlights any recent efforts by the 
community/business to assist job creation/retention activities.  



32 
 

 

 
Solution (40 points) - 

Project Description (15 points) 
 Detail the activities that the community/business will undertake using EDP 

funds to resolve the problems/needs presented in the Problem Statement. 
 

 Identify, in detail, the specific acquisition, equipment, real property 
improvements and/or fixtures that will be installed, modified, and upgraded, 
etc., with EDP funds. 

 

 Explain how the solution directly solves the identified problems/needs. 
 

 Include a firm figure of the number of jobs to be created or retained as a 
     result of the project, and how these jobs relate to persons of low/moderate 
     income. 

 

 Clearly state the amount of EDP funds sought and how they will fit into the 
overall financing for the project.  
 

 Include a graphic description (aerial photo, map, and sketch) of the sites 
involved.  Provide a generalized location of the site relative to the community 
and a copy of a floodplain map showing the project location.  Include existing 
and proposed site and/or building improvements.  

 

Effect on Assisted Business (10 points) 

 Describe the effect the EDP award and completion of the project, as a whole, 
will have on the ability of the community/business to remain competitive, and 
create/retain quality jobs. 

 

 Describe the market including identification of competitors, price structure, 
resource availability, operating/manufacturing costs, transportation costs, 
demand, and other factors influencing the marketability of the product or 
service proposed.  Also identify all project risks and the extent of the risks.   

 

Project Timeline and Feasibility (15 points) 

 Describe how the project is assured of successful completion within 12 
months.  

 

 Identify what work, such as pre-engineering, construction and improvements, 
or fixture purchases that have been completed, or are in process, and exactly 
how these relate to the proposed EDP project. 

 

 Provide background information (including resumes) for the owners and/or 
managers of the business and specific information about the skills and 
experiences of the owners and/or managers as related to the successful 
management of the business and proposed project. 

 

 Include a concise timetable for project implementation. 
 

Citizen Participation (20 Points) -  
Public Hearing Process (10 points)  
Describe how citizen participation contributed to the actual development of this 
application, including how the required public hearing contributed to the process.  
(Submit a public hearing record consisting of the published public hearing 



33 
 

notice, hearing minutes, and attendance list with the original and all three 
copies of the application.)  

 

Business/Local Involvement (10 points) 

 Outline other input from businesses, chambers of commerce, 
development organizations, local groups and individuals have had in 
increasing the citizen participation process for the proposed project.  

 Highlight how the use of any media (TV, radio, newspapers, etc.) 
increased public awareness and participation in the EDP project.  
 

9. Business Friendly Community Designation Bonus – 3 bonus points will be 
assigned to each applicant community certified as a Business-Friendly Community at 
time of application. 
 

10. Final Score Each application will receive a Final Application Score consisting of the 
average of the scores assigned by members of the Review Team and Business Friendly 
Community Designation Bonus if applicable. Starting at the top of the scoring list, 
applicants will be invited to proceed to the Project Development Phase as funds allow.   
 

11. Project Development Phase:   The project development phase must be completed 
within 3 months from the date of award.  The goal of this phase is a grant contract for 
CDBG funds.  During this phase an OCD Development Program Manager will be 
assigned to work with the community to finalize their project.  OCD reserves the right to 
rescind the CDBG program award of the community is not under contract within this 
time.  The Office of Community Development may grant waivers for just cause.   



34 
 

B. MICRO-ENTERPRISE ASSISTANCE GRANT PROGRAM 
 
The Micro-Enterprise Assistance Grant (MEA) Program provides grant funds to assist in 
innovative solutions to problems faced by micro-enterprise businesses. Assistance to 
businesses may be in the form of grants or loans at the discretion of the community. 
 
1. Eligible Activities: Eligible activities under the Micro-Enterprise Assistance category 
are grants or loans to for-profit businesses that can be used for working capital and 
interior renovations, façade grants or loans for exterior improvements, including 
signage, painting, siding, awnings, lighting, display windows and other approved 
improvements; and eligible planning activities necessary to complete the Project 
Development Phase. Sewer, water, storm drainage, parking, roads or streets and 
other infrastructure improvements and buildings solely for residential use are not 
eligible.    
 
2. Exclusions: See Section 1H (3) 
 
3. Micro-Enterprise Assistance Loan Repayments – Communities that establish 
Micro-Enterprise Assistance as loans, and anticipate receiving $35,000 or more in loan 
repayments, must utilize the services of a Community Development Financial Institution 
(CDFI) or a Community Based Development Organization (CBDO) as defined in Section 
105(a)(15) of the Housing and Community Development Act of 1974, to manage 
repayments and subsequent relending.  
 
4. Maximum MEA Grant Amount: $150,000 per Community per year.  
 

5. Maximum Amount of Micro-Enterprise Assistance to an individual Business: 
$50,000 

 
6. Project Benefit:   

 

Micro-Enterprise Grant/Loan:  
 

(a) Existing or developing businesses that have five or fewer employees, one of 
whom owns the enterprise, and whose family income is LMI will meet the 
project benefit. Applicants will need to submit a copy of their 2014 Income 
Tax filing. For those businesses whose owners are Low-to moderate-income 
existing employees’ incomes are not considered in meeting project benefit.  

(b) Businesses with owners who do not qualify as low-to moderate-income must 
create up to two (2) full-time equivalent (FTE) jobs (depending on funds 
requested), which must be taken by low-to moderate-income individuals. 
Proof of employee income will be required. Businesses applying for MEA funds 
must have a business plan not older than 18 months and must have met with a 
Small Business Development Center (SBDC) business counselor in the three 
months prior to submitting an application for assistance.  
 

(c) Business Facade Grants: Project benefit will be met when exterior 
improvements and signage on an existing business take place in a designated 
slum/blight area, or documentation exists that a business qualifies under a spot 
blight basis. 

  



35 
 

7. Demonstration of National Objective: Applicants must demonstrate that the project 
meets the National Objective of 1) assisting existing or developing businesses that have  
five or fewer employees, one of whom owns the enterprise, and whose family income is 
LMI, or 2) creating up to two FTE jobs which must be taken by low- to moderate income 
individuals, or 3) preventing or eliminating slum or blighting conditions conforming to the 
requirements of Title 30-A M.R.S.A. § 5202 and HUD,.  These demonstrations must 
be made as part of the Letter of Intent and Verification of CDBG National 
Objective submitted to OCD  
 
8. Selection Process:  The selection process will consist of two stages: 
 
(a) Stage 1: 

Letter of Intent and Verification of CDBG National Objective: All communities 
wishing to submit a MEA application must submit a Letter of Intent and 
Verification of CDBG National Objective to OCD.  Refer to Page 5 of this 
document for Letter of Intent due dates and deadlines.   . After review for 
completeness and eligibility, units of general local governments will be invited to 
make a full application. 
 

(b) Stage 2: 
Application:  The maximum length of an application is four pages, not 
counting required attachments.  Members of the Review Team will assign a 
Point Total for each application reviewed.  Point Totals will consist of the sum of 
the three scoring areas below and be determined by the total of each sub-scoring 
area.  A maximum of 100 points is obtainable. 

 

 

Impact (40 points):   
 

 State the problem and explain how it negatively impacts the local 
economy. – 30 points 

      

 Explain why MEA funds are necessary for the project; describe efforts 
to secure other grant or loan funds, and tell why they are not are 
available locally to assist – 10 points 

 

Development Strategy (40 points):   
 

     

 Provide Identification and description of potential business grant/loan 
applicants and their needs  – 15 points 

 

 Explain how the MEA project will stimulate business and assist in 
improving the area’s long-term viability. – 15 points 

 

 Provide a project timeline; list activities or actions completed to date. – 
10 points 

 

 
 Citizen Participation (20 points):   

 

 Effective use of any media (newspapers, radio, TV, etc.). – 5 points  
 



36 
 

 Relevance of listed meeting/hearing activities/comments (not counting 
required public hearing) in application and project development. – 5 
points  

 

 Involvement of downtown and local businesses, Chambers of 
Commerce, development groups or other business related 
organizations in development of the application and project. – 5 points 

 
 

 How other local resources (cash and in-kind) are directly related to the 
project. – 5 points 

 
 
 9. Business Friendly Community Designation Bonus – 3 bonus points will be 
assigned to each applicant community certified as a Business-Friendly Community at 
time of application.  
 
10. Final Score – Each application will receive a Final Application Score consisting of 
the average of the scores assigned by members of the Review Team, added to any 
applicable Business Friendly Community Bonus.  Starting at the top of the scoring list, 
applicants will be invited to proceed to the Project Development Phase as funds allow.   

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



37 
 

  

SECTION 4. TECHNICAL ASSISTANCE 
 
The Office of Community Development will use Technical Assistance funds to: conduct 
workshops, produce program materials, implement the CDBG Administrator’s 
Certification Training Program, and provide technical assistance and outreach to 
communities. 
 
Regional Providers will provide planning  assistance to units of general local 
government in identifying community & economic development needs,, developing, and 
administering CDBG projects. For purposes of this paragraph the term "planning 
assistance" means the facilitating of skills and knowledge in planning, developing, and 
administering CDBG activities for entities in non-entitlement areas that may need but do 
not possess such skills and knowledge.   
 

 
SECTION 5. REDISTRIBUTION OF GRANT FUNDS  

 
 
This section describes the methods by which undistributed funds, disencumbered funds, 
additional funds received from HUD, and program income will be redistributed. 
 
1. Local Government Grants from the State:  Applicants receiving grants under the 
2015 CDBG program but failing to have their projects substantially underway (staff 
hired, environmental review complete, program costs obligated, construction or services 
begun) within six months of grant award, may have their grant rescinded by DECD.   
Rescinded grant funds may be added to any open CDBG contract and can be used to 
make additional awards under any eligible CDBG program activity. 

 
Unexpended funds remaining in the grantee’s CDBG account at grant closeout, funds 
remaining in a grantee’s award but not requested upon grant closeout, and funds 
returned to DECD because of disallowed costs may be added to any open CDBG 
contract and can be used to make additional awards under any eligible CDBG program 
activity. 

 
2. Unallocated State Grants to Local Governments:  Unallocated grant funds 
resulting from lack of adequate program competition or demand in any of the available 
2015 CDBG programs and any additional funds allocated by HUD may be added to any 
open CDBG contract and can be used to make additional awards under any eligible 
CDBG program activity. 

 
3. Basis for Redistribution:  The decision to redistribute funds will be made after staff 
evaluation of the following: the total funds available, new requests for funding, requests 
for additional funding from current CDBG grantees and applicants for competitions that 
did not receive funding.   The OCD may redistribute available funds to any project 
deemed to be in the best interest of, and that offer CDBG definable benefits to the State 
of Maine. 

 



38 
 

 
 

SECTION 6. PROGRAM INCOME 
 
As used in this Proposed Statement, “Program Income” means the gross income 
received by a grantee from any grant-supported activity in excess of $35,000.  
Applicants will refer to the CDBG Regulations and the Maine Office of Community 
Development policies on program income. 
 

SECTION 7. APPEALS 
 
Appeals of award decisions are restricted to errors of fact or procedure.  Appeals in the 
areas of judgment qualitative scoring will not be entertained.  In the case of a successful 
appeal, funds will be reserved for the project from available or subsequent CDBG funds. 
 
An applicant wishing to appeal DECD’s decision regarding their 2015 application 
restricted to errors of fact or procedure, may do so by submitting an appeal letter to the 
Director of the Office of Community Development within fifteen (15) days of the award 
announcement for that specific program. 

 
 

SECTION 8. AMENDMENTS TO THE PROGRAM STATEMENT 
 
The State may amend the 2015 Program Statement from time to time in accordance 
with the same procedures required for the preparation and submission of the program 
statement.  The State of Maine’s Administrative Procedures Act will guide the 
amendment process.   

 
 
 
 
 



39 
 

 

 
THIS MATERIAL IS AVAILABLE IN ALTERNATIVE FORMAT 

UPON REQUEST 
 

BY CONTACTING: 
 

OFFICE OF COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT 
111 SEWALL STREET, 3

RD
 FLOOR 

59 STATE HOUSE STATION 
AUGUSTA, MAINE 04333-0059 

TELEPHONE (207) 624-7484 
TTY: 1-800-437-1220 

 
 

ALSO AVAILABLE ON THE OFFICE OF COMMUNITY 
DEVELOPMENT WEB SITE: 

 

www.meocd.org 
 

The Maine CDBG Program is Funded by: 

 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 

 

http://www.meocd.org/


 
 

 
ITEM 63 
BACK UP MATERIALS 
 



Rules of Order and Procedure for Brunswick Town Council 

As amended on February 1, 2010 9 

(7) Public Comments 
(8) Correspondence 
(9) Committee Reports 
(10) Manager’s Report 
(11) Hearings 
(12) Tabled Matters 
(13) New Business 

  (amended 2/9/2015.) 
 
28 a Town Council Action on Items 
 
  The following procedures are suggested: 
 

1. Sponsor or manager introduces the item 
  Any councilor may make a motion (optional) (Note 1) 
2. Sponsor or manager explains the item 
  Sponsor, manager, staff, or others (as designated by sponsor or manager) 
  provide additional explanation or information 
3. Town Council questions (no debate) 
4. Public input (optional) 
5. Additional questions from Town Council (no debate) 
6. Chair recites motion, if already made, or looks for motion (Note 1) 
7. Town Council debate 
8. Amendments to motion (optional) and debate 
9. Vote on motion (amended, if applicable) 
 
Note 1:  As a courtesy on motions, the Chair shall look first to the sponsor, then to the 

district councilor (if applicable), and then to the remaining councilors. 
 
The Chair, without objection, may modify these procedures as appropriate. 

 
 29. Procedure of Motions 
 
  When a question is before the Town Council no motion shall be entertained 

except: (a) to adjourn, (b) to recess, (c) to table, (d) for the previous question, (e) 
to refer, (f) to amend, and (g) to postpone indefinitely.  These motions shall have 
precedence in the order indicated.  Any such motion, except a motion to amend or 
postpone indefinitely, shall be put to a vote without debate. 

 
 
 30. Motions to be Stated by Chair – Withdrawal 
 
  When a motion is made and seconded, it shall be stated by the Chair before 

debate.  Any Town Councilor may demand that it be put in writing by the Clerk.  
A motion may not be withdrawn by the mover without the consent of the Town 
Councilor seconding it. 

 
 31. Motions Out of Order 



 
Intentionally left blank 



 
 

 
ITEM 64 
BACK UP MATERIALS 
 



 
MEMORANDUM 

TO: Town Council 

FROM: Appointments Committee 

SUBJECT: Report for June 1st Appointments 

DATE: 5/28/2015 

 
The Appointments Committee interviewed several people and are making the following 
nominations: 
 
Cable TV Committee 
 David Carpenter – reappointment for a term to expire on 09/06/2018 
 
Davis Fund Committee 
 Daniel Doiron – reappointment for a term to expire on 06/30/2018 
 
Housing Authority 
 Howard Nannen – appointment for a term to expire on 06/03/2020 
 
Marine Resource Committee 

Timothy Bennett – appointment as alternate non-license holder member for a term to 
expire on 05/01/2018 

 
There was another applicant, Rob Harrower, who was very qualified, but the Committee is 
recommending Mr. Bennett. 
 
Personnel Board 
 Marybeth Latti – reappointment as alternate for a term to expire on 01/12/2018  
 
Recreation Commission 
 Daniel Ankeles – reappointment for a term to expire on 07/01/2018 
 
Trust Fund Advisory 
 David Shaughnessy – appointment for a term to expire on 05/10/2017  



Current and future vacancies: (listed alphabetically) 
 Cable TV Committee 
5 members – 3 year terms to begin on 9/6/2015 and expire on 09/06/2018. (Please apply by July 
13) 
 
Davis Fund 
3 members – 3 year terms to begin on 06/30/2015 and expire on 06/30/2018 (Please apply by 
May 18) 
 
Downtown & Outer Pleasant Street Master Plan Implementation Committee 
(3 year terms to begin immediately and expire on 12/01/2017) (Current openings-apply now) 

 1 member – Pleasant Street Business Owner 
 1 member – Pleasant Street Resident 
 1 member – Brunswick Downtown Association member 
 1 member – Business Owner – Downtown 
 1 member – Citizen at Large 

 
Fair Hearing Authority 
3 members – 3 year terms to begin immediately and expire on 10/01/2017 (Current opening – 
apply now) 
 
Housing Authority 
1 member – 5 year term to begin on 06/03/2015 and expire on 06/03/2020 (Please apply by May 
18) 
 
Marine Resource Committee 
1 Alternate member – Commercial Harvester – balance of 3 year term to begin immediately and 
expire on 05/01/2017 (Current opening – apply now) 

 1 Alternate member – Non License holder – 3 year term to begin immediately and expire on 
05/01/2018 (Current opening – apply now) 

 2 Commercial harvester – 3 year terms to begin on 05/01/2015 and expire on 05/01/2018 (Please 
apply by April 13) 
 
Personnel Board 
2 alternate members – 3 year terms to begin immediately and expire on 01/12/2018 (Current 
opening – apply now) 
 
Recreation Commission 
2 members – 3 year terms to expire on begin on 07/01/2015 and expire on 07/01/2018 Please 
apply by May 18) 
 
Recycling and Sustainability Committee  
1 member – 3 year term to begin immediately and to expire on 01/12/2018 (Current opening – 
apply now) 
 



Trust Fund Advisory Committee 
1 member – balance of 3 year term to begin immediately and to expire on 05/10/2016 (Current 
opening – apply now) 

 1 member – balance of 3 year term to begin immediately and expire on 5/10/2017 (Current 
opening – apply now) 

 1 member – 3 year term to begin on 05/10/2015 and expire on 05/10/2018 (Please apply by April 
13) 
 
Village Review Board 
1 member (district resident) – balance of a 3 year term to begin immediately and expire on 
10/20/2017 (Current opening – apply now) 

 2 members – 3 year terms to begin on 10/20/2015 and expire on 10/20/2018. (Please apply by 
September 14) 
 
Water District Board of Trustees 
2 members – 3 year terms to begin on 09/13/2015 and expire on 09/13/2018 (Please apply by 
August 17) 
 
Zoning Board of Appeals 
1 Associate member – balance of 3 year term to begin immediately and expire on 07/01/2016 
(Current opening – apply now) 

 1 Associate member – balance of 3 year term to begin immediately and expire on 07/01/2018 
(Please apply by May 18) 

 1 Associate member – 3 year term to begin immediately and expire on 12/18/2017 (Current 
opening – apply now) 

 2 Full members – 3 year terms to begin on 11/20/2015 and expire on 11/20/2018 (Please apply by 
October 19) 
Special committee  
William Fitzgerald USN Recreation and Conservation Area Master Plan Committee 
1 citizen – to begin immediately, no set term (Current opening – apply now) 

 


















































	ca a yes
	ca a April 30, 2015 min special
	ca b yes
	ca b May 14 2015 min ph budget
	ca c yes
	ca c May 18, 2015 min
	ca d yes
	ca d 1 Memo to TC on CDBG ADA-Fair Housing Packet (FINAL 5-22-2015)
	ca d 2 STANDARDS OF CONDUCT 2015 (FINAL 5-22-2015)
	ca d 3 FAIR HOUSING RESOLUTION 2015 (FINAL 5-22-2015)
	ca d 4 FAIR HOUSING SELF ASSESSMENT 2015 (FINAL 5-22-2015)
	ca d 5 504 EVALUATION TRANSITION PLAN 2015 (FINAL 5-22-2015)
	ca d 5a ADA 504 CERTIFICATION 2015 (FINAL 5-22-2015)
	ca d 6 EEO STATEMENT 2015 (FINAL 5-22-2015)
	ca d 7 ANTIDISPLACEMENT RELOCATION PLAN 2015 (FINAL 5-22-2015)
	ca e yes
	ca e bda scan0014
	ca f yes
	Ca F 1 Resolution to accept Scultpure (DRAFT 5-26-2015)
	ca f 2Artist representation (2015)
	mr a yes
	mr a thanks benchscan0015
	mr b no
	mr c yes
	mr d yes
	mr d 1 Memo to TC on DECD CDBG Chart (5-27-2015)
	mr d 2 DECD CDBG Chart (FINAL 5-27-2015)
	mr d 3 2015 CDBG Final Program Statement
	62 yes
	63 yes
	App Committee May 20th meeting packet.pdf
	App report for May 20, 2015 app com
	2015 Ankeles D Rec_20150504092245
	2015 Bennett T Mar Res_20150514084733
	2015 Carpenter D CATV _20150515115938
	2015 Doiron D Davis Fund_20150506121342
	2015 Donovan J Trust Fnd_20150513090219
	2015 Harris A Davis Fnd_20150515135541
	2015 Harrower  R Mar Res_20150428082522
	2015 Latti Marybeth Pers_20150424133319
	2015 Nannen H BHA_20150512150008
	2015 Shaughnessy Trust F_20150514084611


